GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Particulars Note As at As at As at
No. 31,03.2022 31.03.2021 01.04.2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant & equipment 4 10,03,539 8,73,090 7,11,834
b) Intangible assets 5 5,39,15,616 3,19,62,955 3,58,27,571
c) Intangible assets under development 6 - 1,61,22,296 -
d) Deferred taxassets (net) 7 - - «
e) Income tax assets (net) 8 30,66,605 28,63,478 17,05,529
f) Other Non-Current assets 9 3,23,35,600 3,23,35,600 -
Total non-current assets 9,03,21,360 8,41,57,419 3,82,44,934
Current assets
a) Inventories 10 87,20,460 - =
b) Financial assets
i) Trade receivables 11 75,59,528 28,13,303 57,13,929
ii) Cash & cash equivalents 12 2,46,48,157 7,82,146 4,46,946
iii) Other financial assets 13 13,000 63,000 5,000
¢) Other Current assets 9 6,98,83,903 5,70,116 5,45,787
Total Current Assets 11,08,25,048 42,28,564 67,11,662
TOTAL ASSETS 20,11,46,408 8,83,85,983 4,49,56,596
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equity share capital 14 4,00,000 4,00,000 -4,00,000
b) Other-equity 15 98,50,839 45,16,707 42,46,795
Total equity 1,02,50,839 49,16,707 46,46,795.
Liablilities
Non-current fiabilities
a) Provisions 20 18,16,904 14,56,399 9,94,966
b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 7 28,66,188 12,32,935 11,42,186
Total non-current liabilities 46,83,092 26,89;334 21,37,152
Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 16 16,50,80,710 7,72,47,882 2,71,97,882
iii) Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises & i -
~Total ?utstandlng diies of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 17 1,95,62,602 10,28,788 95,87,069
enterprises
jv) Other financlal liabilities 18 8,42,504 11,48,251 11,38,438
b) Other current liabilities 19 4,20,454 13,04,286 1,90,568
¢} Provisions 20 .3,06,207 50,735 58,692
Total current liabilities 18,62,12,477 8,07,79,942 3,81,72,649
Total liabilities 19,08,95;569 8,34,69,276 .4,03,09,801
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ~20,11,46,408 8,83,85,983 4,49,56,596

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an fntegral part of these restated financial statements
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GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Note No.

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Income
1. Revenue from operations 21 14,64,77,748 2,03,03,984
I, Other income 22 13,89,767 =
Hl. Total income 14,78,67,514 2,03,03,984
IV. Expenses
Purchase of Stock in Trade 10,82,28,349 42,122
Change in Stock in trade 23 (87,20,460) -
Employee benefits expense 24 1,73,51,721 94,27,636
Finance costs 25 7,69,599 -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 48,79,131 44,24,174
Other expenses 27 1,83,71,832 60,50,243
Total expenses 14,08,80,172 1,99,44,175
V. Profit / {Loss) before tax (Il ~1V) 69,87,342 3,59,809
VI. Tax expenses
" Current tax - <
Tax for earlier years - -
Deferred tax expense / (credit) 16,38,276 90,535
Total tax expense 16,38,276 90,535
VIL, Profit / {Loss) for the year (V - V1) 53,49,066 2,69,274
ViI, Other Comprehensive Income
Iteims that will not be ré-classified subsequently to profitor loss
Re-measurements.of the defined benefit plan (19,957) 852
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 5,023 (214)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (14,934) 638
IX. Total Comprehensive income for the year (VI + Vill}) 53,34,132 2,69,912
Earnings per equity share
[nominal value of INR. 10 per share]
- Basic earning per share (INR) 133.73 6.73
-Diluted earning per share (INR) 133.73 6.73

summary of significant accounting policles 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
A. Cash flows from operating activities:
Restated Profit / (loss) for the period / year before tax 69,87,342 3,59,809
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 48,79,131 44,24,174
Finance costs 7,69,599 ¥
Interest income -7,61,139 %
Bad debts 40,500 -
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 1,19,15,433 47,83,983
Working capital adjustments:
{Increase)/ Decrease'in trade receivables -47,86,726 29,00,627
(Increase)/Decrease in other Financial Assets 50,000 58,000
(Increase)/Decrease in other Assets -6,93,13,787 -24,329
(Increase)/Decrease in inventory -87,20,460 »
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 1,85,33,814 -85,58,281
Increase/(Decrease) in financial liabilities <3,05,747 9,813
Increase/(Decrease) In Other liabilities -8,83,832 11,13,718
Increase/(Decrease)in provisions 5,96,020 4,54,328
Cash generated from operations 5,29,15,285 6,21,859
Income taxes paid (net of refund) -2,03,127 -11,57,949
Net cash generated from operating activities +5,31,18,412 -5,36,090
B. Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of propérty, plant and equipment ~1,08,39,945 -4,91,78,710
Interest received 7,61,139 5
Net cash generated/(used) in investing activities -1,00,78,806 -4,91,78,710
C. Cash flows from financing activities ) :
Proceeds from term loans 8,78,32,828 5,00,50,000
Interest paid -7,69,599 -
Net cash used in financing activities 8,70,63,229 5,00,50,000
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash.and cash equivalents (A+B4C) 2,38,66,012 3,35,200
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginhing of the year/ period 7,82,146 4,46,946
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year / perlod '2,46,48,157 7,82,146

* Restated as per ICDR Regulations read withICAl's Guidance Note on Repdrts in Company Prospectuses ~ Prepared following accounting policies consistent with that
used at the date of transition to Ind AS. Alsorefer Note 2.1

Notes to cash flow statement
1 Components of cash.and cash equivalents:

Balances with banks

- On current accounts 38,21,503 1,90,701
- On bank deposits with orig?na( maturity of less than three months 2,00,21,069 .
Cash on hand ) 8,05,585 5,91,445

2,46;48,157 7,82,146

3 The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with 'Indirect method"as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-7 on 'Cash Flow Statements’,
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies:Act, 2013

summaryof significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these restated financial statements
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GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to thefinanclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

1. Corporate information .
The Company was incorporated on April 5, 2017 under'the Companies Act, 2013, The Registerad ofice of the Company is situated at Building No. 10,
DDA Commercial Complex, Nangal Raya; Delhi<110046. The company is engagaed in business of participating in rescarch design and manufacturing of
all kind of smart. meters in'the areas of gas, water, electricity and other utilities and to establish research laboratories for developing the business of
technology.consultancy, energy audit services, data monitoring-centric operations, location based tracking services and physical attendance solutions
ete and other allied services,

These financial statements were authorized for issue.in accordance with a resolution passed by board of directors on May 27, 2022.

g

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Company: comprise of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the statement of profit and loss {including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes In equity and the statement of cash flows for the:year ended March 31, 2022 and the summary of

significant accounting policies and explanatory notes {colfectively, the financlal statements’)‘:

These financial statements have been.prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS}) as per the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘A¢t”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company “s financial statements up.to and for the year ended 31 March 2021 were: prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006, notified Under Section 133 of-the Act and other relevant provistons of the Act ('Previous GAAP').

Asithese are the Company’s first financial statements prepared In accordance with Indian. Accounting Standards {ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. has’ been applied. An explanation of how the transition to ind AS has affected the previously reported
financial position, financial performance.and:cash flows of the Company is provided in Note-40.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies:are included in Note 4.

3. ‘Basis.of preparation and presentation
The financial statements have been prepared on the histarical cost basis as exglained in the'accounting policies below, except for the following:

- certaln financial:assets and liabilities: measured at fair valiie (refer accounting policy regarding financial in§truments).

Fairvitlueeds the price that would be received:to sell an asset or paid to-transfer a Hability in an-orderly transaction between market parficipants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price isiirectly observable or estimated using another valuation technique:

In estimating the fair value of an asset:or a fiability; the Company considers-the characteristics of the:asset or liability if market participants would
take those characterlstics into account when pricing:the-asset-or llabllity.at the measurement date;

The Company has ani established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing alt significantfairvalie measurements, including Level 3 fairvalues, and réports difectly to the head of finance,

Significantvaltation issues are reported-to'the-board of directors,

nv-addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair vaiue measurements are categorized into Level1, 2, or’3 based-on the degree to which the inputsto
the faic value measurements are obsetvable and the significance of the INPUTS 16 the falf value mgasurement I its entirety, which are described-as
follows:

- Level 1 Iriputs:are guoted prices {unadjusted) in-active markets-for identical-assets or Habilities:that:the Company can access:at the.measurement

date. "
+Level 2 Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for thie asset or liability, either diractly or indirectly,

and
~Level3inputs are unobservable inputs for the assetorfiability.

When msasiiring the fair value of anasset ora liability, the Company uses observable market data as faras possible. If the inputs used 1o measure-the
falrvalue of an-asset or a liability falf info different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then tie fairvalue:measurement is categorized in its antirety in
the:same level of the {air value hierarchy:as the:lowest levelinput that is‘signlflcant 10 the:entiré measurciment.

All:amounts disclosed in the financial stateients. ard notes have been rounded off 1o the-naarast INR 4§ per therequirement of Schedule #l, unless
otherwise stated,

The preparation of these financial statements regulires the use .of cerfaln critical saccournting: judgements. and: estimates. It also tequires: the

management o exercise judgement In the process:of a‘pp}ying_ the Company’k accounting policies. Theareas where estimates are significantto the
financfal statements, orareas involving:ahigher degree of judgement or complexity; are-disclosed in Note 6.
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" GENFSIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIVHTED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per shate data or as otherwise stated

4.. Significant accounting policies
a} Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in balance sheet based oh current/non-current classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- - Held primarily for the:purpose of trading ,
- Expected to be realized within twelve Months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or Cash equivalent untess restricted from being exchanged or used tosettle a liability for at Jeast twelve months after the reporting period.

Albother assets are classified as non-current,

Allability is classified as current when:

-1t is-expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It Is:held primartly for the purpose of trading:

- Itis'due to be settled Within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There Is'no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
The'Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the'time between-the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization In cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b} Measurement of fair values
The Company’s accouriting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financialassets and liabifitics.

Fair value is the price that would‘be received to sell an asset or paid to:transfer a {tabifity In an orderly transaction between market-participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair vatue
of an asset or a liability, the :Company has taken into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if - market particip,ams would take those
characteristics into account whieh pricing the asset.or liabllity. at the measurement date. Fair value for measurementiand./ or disclosure purposes in
these financial statements is determined o such a basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised iito Level 1, 2, or 3 based on'the dégree to which the inputs to
the faii value measurements are observable and the significance of the Inputs tothe falr value measurement.in Its-entirety, which are described as

foliows:

Level Linputs are gubted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at:theameastifement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, otherthan quoted prices included within Level 1, that are obisérvable for the assets orltabilities either dircctly or indirectly;
and

Level 3.inputs are unobservable Inputs for the asset or liability. _ )
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy atthe.end of the reporting period.during which the:¢hange has cecurred.

¢} Financial thstruments
Afinancial Instrument is-any contract that: gives rise to:a financial asset.of one entity:and a financial liability or equity’instrament of another ertity,
Trade recelvables are inltially recognised whenitheyare origihated, All other financial assets and: liabifities are:initially recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions'of the instrament..
Afinancialinstrument is any contract that gives rise'to a-financial asset-ora financial abllity or equity instrument.of thie Company;
i. Recognition and initial measurement.
A financial asset.or-financial liability: Is- initially measured at fair value plus; for an item Aot recorded at fairvalie-through profit or loss {FVTPLY,
transaction coststhat are directly attributable to its acquisition o issue.

. Classification-and subsequent mieastrement

Financialassets

On initial.:recogn,ition,‘a financial assetis:measured at:

- amortised cost, or;

- Fair value through other comprehensive Incone {FVOCt) or;

«  Falrvalue throughProfitor Loss (FVTPL)

Afinancial assetis moastired at anvortised-cost If it meets both:of the following:conditions and Ismot designated as atFyTPL

+ the asset is:held within a business model whose.objective Is tothold assets to:collect rontractual cash flows; and

~ the contractual terms of the financial asset, give rise on specified dates to cash flows that dre solely payiments of principal and interest on the

principalamount outétanding.
M fw‘" ooy




' GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year eénded March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as'otherwise stated

On initial recognition of an equity investment that:is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investiient’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI~ equity Investraent). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCH if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset s held within.a business modet whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principat amount outstanding.
All financlal assets not classified as-measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL,

Financial assets: Business model assessment
The Cotmpany riakes an assessment of the objective.of the business model in which a financial assot is held at a portfolio level because this best
reflects the way'the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policles in practice. These Include whether management’s strategy
focusos on earning contractual interest Income, mamtalning 4 particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to-the
duration-of anyrelated fiabilities or expected cash outflows of realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

~how'the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

-~ the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are
managed;

- how. managers of the'business are compensated.~ e.g.'whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the-contractual

cash flows collected; and
~the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets inprior periods, the reasons for such. sales.and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers:of financial assets to third parties In transactions‘that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent
with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets,

Financial assets thatare held for trading or are.managed and whose performance is.evaluated on a'fatrvaloe basis are measured at FYTPL,
Financial assets: Assessmient whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest:

For the purposes of this. assessment, ‘principal’ is: defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of moneyand for the credit fisk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time
and for other basiclending risks and costs {e.d. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as-well as.a’profit-margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments-of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the
instrumient. This-includes assessing whether the financlal asset containg a contractual term that.could change the timing ér amouint of contractual
cash flows:such that itwould not-meet this‘condition. in maki’ng this assessment; the Company considers:

- contingent-events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

= terms thatsnay adjust the contractual coupon rate; including variable Interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

~terms thatdimit the Company’s.claim to cash flows from specified assets{(e.g. non-recourse features).

Financial assets: Subsequent nt and gains:and Josses

Financial assets atFVTPRL
These assetsare:subsequently measured atfair value. Nt gains and losses, including any interest'or dividend Income, are recognised in profit orloss.

Financial assets at:amortised cost

These assets:are subsequently measured: at amortised cost: using the effective interest method, The amortised cost is reduced by impaitment losses,
Interest income,-foreign exchange gdins apd losses and lmpa!rment dre recognised In:profit o loss. Any'gain or 16ss on derecognition Is recognised in
profit.orloss.

Equity investraents at FvOCt
These assdts afe subsequently measured at fair value: Dividends are: tecognised.as incofe in profit or lass, unless the dividend cledrly répresents a
recovery of part-of the cost-of the investment. Other net gainsaand losses are recognised in OCantiare not reclassified to profit of foss.

Financiol Habilities: Classification, subsequent ineasiterentand ‘gains and fosses

Finangial abilities: are classified s measured at amortised cost :or FUTPL. A. financial Hability is classified as at FVTRL if it is classified a¥
held-for«tradmg, orit is-a-derivative orit I designated-as such ‘on initial recognition. Einancialilabliities at BVIPLare nieasured at fair value and net
gains:and Iosses, inchiding any interest expense; are recognised In profit orjoss, Other finandial Habllities are subsequently measured at-amortised
costusing the-éffective-interest method. Interest expense-and: foreign exchange gains and losses dre recognised in profit or loss. Any. galn vr-loss.on
derecognition s also recognised in profit or loss.




GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR,-except per share data of as otherwise stated

i. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financlal asset when the.contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers.the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction In which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownershlp of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company tieither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does hot retain control of the

financial asset,

if the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet; but retains either all or substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised;

Financial labilities

The Company derecognises a financial ability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a finandial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantislly
different. in this case, a-new financialliability based on the modified terms Is recognised at fair value. The difference between the:carrying amountof
the financial liability extinguished and the: new financial iabllity with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

ii. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are-offset and the net.amount presented in-the balance sheet when, and only when, the.Company currently
has a legally enforceable right to setoff the:amounts and it intends either to settie them on a net-basis or to realise the asset and settlethe liabifity

simultaneously,
d} Property Plant and Equipments (PPE);

i. Property Plant and Equlpments (PPE)

Items of property, plant-and equipment are measured atcost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impalrment losses, if any.

Cost of an item. of property, plant.and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and nons-refundable purchase-taxes after
deducting trade discounts and.rebates; any directly attributable cost of bringing the ftem to'ts working condition for its intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and remaoving the iter and. restoring the site on which it s located,

Thie: cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs dirgctly
attributable to bringing the itém to Working condition for its intended use, and estimatad costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on-whichit is located. .

if significant parts of an item. of property, plant and equipment have different useful fives, then they are accounted for as separate jtems (major
components) of property; plant and equiipment.\ .

Any.galn or loss-ondisposal of an item of property; plant and equipment is recognised in Statement of profit:and loss,

ii. Transition to Ind AS

On transition: to Ind AS, the.-Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised-as at'1
Anril 2020, measured as per the previous GAAR; and use that.carrying value as the deemed costof such property, plant and equipment.

il Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent -expenditure is capitalised oaly if it i§ probable that the futuré. economic: benefits agsociated with the expenditure: will flow: to the
‘Company.

v, Depreciation

Depreclation s calculated on cost of kitemsfof"property,; plant.and equipment. less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives

using.the written down value method, and.is.generatly recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

The estimated usefullives of itams: of property; plant and.equipment for the current and comparative periods are usefll Life: as per Schedule It of
Companies Act, 2013 exceptin respect of thefollowlng tategories of assets,'in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under:

Leasehold Iniprovements are aimbprtised.over: the period of lease or S years; whichever islower,
Assets Individually costingup to INR'S,000 a¥e fully depreciated on purchase:

x

Depreciation method, useful fives and residual values-are reviewed at each financial year-end-and-adjusted:if appropriate. The management believes
that:the useful lives as given above best-represent the period over which:management expects to use:these assots,

eJ Intangible asscts

i. Intangibile Assets

Intangible: Assets are capitalised on the:basis-of costs Incurred to acquire and:bring the-intangible-asset to use. These are stated.at acquisition costs,
net of accumulated amortization and accumulated Impairment losses; if any.

ii;ﬂﬂsubsequent Expenditire ‘
Subsequentexpenditure is:cdpitalised only when it incréases thefuture economic benefits €mbodied in the specific asset to which ityelates All-other
expenditire Is facoghised in Statérientof profit and Joss as incorred;

fm‘{




GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

-

iti. Transition to ind AS
On transition to ind AS, the Company. has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2020,

measured-as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemied cost of such intangible assets.

iv. Amaortisation
Amortisation is caleulated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the

straight-line method, and is included in amortisation in the statement of profit and loss.

Softwares are-amortized onstraight-line basis over a period of ten years.
Amortisation method, useful fives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if dpproptiate.

Impairment
1. impairment of Financial assats

The Company recognises loss-allowances for expected creditilosses on financial assets measured at amortised cost:
At cach reporting date, the: Company assesses whether fingricial assets .carried at amortised cost ate craditimpiired. A financial asset is
‘credit-impalred’ whan-one or more:events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated futire cash:fiows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence thata-financial asset is-creditsimpaired Includes the following:observable data;

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

~ therestructuting of a loan oradvance by the Cdmpany‘on‘terins that'the:Company would not consider-otherwise;
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other-financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of.an active market for a security because of financial difficulties,

The Company measures: the loss allowance for a financial instriment at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has'increased significantly since initialrecognition. If the credit risk on a financial thstrument has notincreased significantly
since initial recognition, the Company measures the: loss: allowiance for that financial instrument at' an arount ‘equal 19 12:fonth expected credit

losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables or any contractual right o receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customeis are always measurad at an amount equal to'lifetime expected credit losses,

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected: fife of a finangial

instrument,
12-month-expected creditlosses:are the portion of expected creditlosses that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the

reporting.date {or a.shorter period if the-expected life of the instrument isless than-12 months).

In all cases, the maximin. period considered when estimating.expected credit losses is-the maximyum:contractual period-over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the-credit risk of a financial assethas ingreased significantly since Initial recognition and'when estimating expected credit
losses, the Company ‘considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both
quantitative: and qualitativesinformation and analysis, based on the Company's historica experience and informed cradit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Company assunies that thé:credit risk.on a financial asset has increased significantly i it is more than 90days past'due.

The Company considers & financial asset-to be In default when the: borrower Is unlikely to pay'its: credit obligations to the Company in. full, without
recourse by the Company to:actions such as-realising:securdty {if-any Is held).

Measurement of expected-credit.losses ‘
Expected’eredit losses are & probability-weighted estimate of crodit losses. Credit losses are measured. a§ the present-valie of dll cash shortfalls (i:0.

the difference betweer t1is:cash flaws due to the Compatiy I accardance with the-contract-and the cash flowsthat the Company expects:to receive).

Presentation of allowanee fot expected credit Iossesin the bolanie shest
Lossdllowances for financlal assets medsured at amortised costare deducted from. the gross carrying ampunt of the dssets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amountof:a:financial asset is written-off'{gither partially or In full) to the extent that there is norealistic prospect of recovery. This

is generally the case whan the:Corpany determines that the debtor does ot have assets orsources of income that could generate sufficicnt cash
flows Yo:repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets: thit.are written: off could:still be subject to enforcement activities i
order to.comply with the.Company’s procedures for recovery.of amounts due.
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ii. Impairment of non financial assets

The Compariy’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication-exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount Is estimated.

Forimpairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are Companyed together Into.cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash Inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable-dmount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its falf value fess costs to sell. Value in- use is based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
valuevfmoney and the risks specific to the CGU {or the asset).

An impairment foss is recognised if the carrying amognt of an asset or CGU exceeds its: estimated recoverable amount. ‘Tmpairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and Joss.

In respect:of assets for which impairment loss has been recoghised in prior periods, the Company reviews at-each reporting date whether there is any
indication. thal. the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss 15 reverséd if there has been a change in the estimatos used to
determine-the recoverable amount. Such a reversalis made only to the extent that-the asset's carrying:amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation.or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Employee Bénefits

i. Shoit-term employee benefits

Short-term eémployee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basls and are expensed ‘as therrelated service is provided. A liability_ Is
recogrised for the amount expected to be paid:e g, under short-term cash bonus; if the Company hasa present legal or constructive obligationto pay
this amount asa result of past:service provided by the-employee; and the amount of obligation. can be estimated reliably.

il. Defined contribution plans

In ‘accordance with Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1852, employees of the: Company: are entitied to recelve benefits under the
provident fund, a defined contribution plan; in which; both the employee and the Company contribute, monthly at @ détermined rate, These
contributions are:made to a recognised provident fund and administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, The employee contributes 12%
of their basic:salary and the Company contributes an equal amount. The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts,
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit.expense In Statement of Profit and Loss in the
periods during which the related services are rendered by:employees.

ii. Pefined bencfit plan

- A defined benefit:plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. ‘Every'employeeis entitled to a benefit equivalont to

h}

fificen days salary tast drawni-for each completdd year:of servicein line with the Payment:of Gratuily Act, 1972. The same is payable at the time_ of

separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is-carlier.
The Company’s et obligation in respect-ofdefined benefit plansis calculated by estimating the amount;of future benefit that employees have sarned

‘inthe.curient.and prior periods, discounting that amount.

The: calculation of defined benefit obligation is: performed annually by-a qualified actuary using. the projected unit eredit method, When the

‘calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset Is imited to the ) prasentvalie of economic benefits available in the form

of anyfuture refunds from the.plan or reductions ir future contiibttions to-the plan{‘the asset ceiling’),

Remeastrements of the net-defined benefitdiability; which-comprise:actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan-assets (excluding Interest) and the
offect of the asset calling. (if any, excluding interest); are recognised in OCI; The Company determines the net interest expense {income) on the net
defined benefit fiability (asset) for the period by.applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual perioy tothe then-net:defified benefit liability (asset); taking/inito accolnt any changes in:thie fiet:defined benefit lability ( (asset) durlng-the
peripd:4s a result of ‘contributions and benefit payments. Net interest-ekpense:and other expénses related to:defined benefit plans are recognised in
Staterenit of Profit and Loss

iv. Othériong-term employee benefits

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are. expected to be availed or-encashed within 12 months from the.end 6F the
year are treated-as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same Is measured:at the ‘expected cost of dccumulating compensated
absences.as the additional amaourit expected to be paid:as a resultof the unused entitlement as at. the'yearend.

Accumulated conpensated absences, whith.dre expected to-be-availed or encashed beyond 12.months fromthe end-of the-year end are treated as
other lonptefm employee benefits, The Company’s. HabHity is-actuarially determined {using’the Projected Unit Credit method)at'the ¢hd of vach year,
Actuarial ldsses/ gains are:recognised in'the Siatement of Profit and Loss'in the yearin which thay arise,

Provisions{other than for employee benefits)

A provision Is recognised if; as a‘tosult of a past Gverit, the Company has & presentlegal or'constructive otifigation that can be estimated refiably; and
it is. probable that an outflow of economic benefits will'be reguired to settle the obligation. Provisions. are determined by discounting the ekpected
futura casti flows {feprésenting the best estimate ofthe expenditure required to settle the present.obligation atthe batance:sheet date) at a prestaxs
rate that reflécts: current market assessments of the: time value 'of money-and the: risks specific to-the diability. ‘The unwinding of the: discount i

recognised as finance cost;
“,/.QMD jMﬂm
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i} Revenue recognition:
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably

measured, regardless.of when the payment Is being made. Revenue is measured at the'falr value of the consideration recelved or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government,.

However, Goods and Services Tax (GST) is not recelved by the Company on its own account. Rather, It is tax collected on value added to the
commodity by the sefler on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is:excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

The Company recognized revenue when {or-as) a performance obligation was satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods and services underlying the
particular performance obligation were transferred to the customer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods and seivices is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as follows:

Step 1: dentify the contract(s) with:a customer

Step 2: identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the-performance obligations:in the contragt

Step 5: Recognise revenue when {or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Revenue is measured based on:the transaction price, which is the consideration, as specified in the contract with the customer, Revenue excludes
taxes collected from customers onbehalf of the government.which are lévied such as Goods and Services Tax.

The performance obligation is satisfied'and recognized as revenue overtime, if one of the following criterla Is met;
i} The performance does.not create assets'with'an alternate use and has an enfarceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

il) The performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
iii} The customer simuftaneously réceives and consumes the benefits provided,

for- performance-obligations whére one of the above conditions are not met; revenue:is recognized at the point in time:at which the performance
obligation is-satisfied. When performance obligation is satisfied by dellvering the promised goods or services it creates a contract-based asset on the
amount of consideration earned by the performance, Where the amount of consideration received from a custorier exceeds the amount revenue
recognized:this give rise toa contract liability,

Sale-of goods

Revenue from'sale of goods.is recognised when the control of goods is:transferred to the buyer as per the:terms of the contract, in.an amount that
reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitied toin exchange for those'goods. Control of goods refers to the ability to difect the use of
and obtain substantially alf of the:remaining-benefits from goods.

Revenue Is measured at fair value of the consideration received of receivable ahd are accounted for net of returns:and -discounts. Sales, as disclosed,
are exclusive of goods and services:tax:

Revenue from sales of goods is-recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net'of the discounts. Revenue isonly recognised to the extent
that itis highly probablethat a significant reversal will not-occut.

Sale of services
Revenues for services are recognised when the service rendered has been compléted.

QOther income
Interest Income'is recognized on'time proportion basis taking into aceount the amount outstanding and a‘ppl‘lcabkz interestrates,
‘Revenue from rentals is recognized-on accrual basis in accordance with the'substanceiof the relevant agreement.

J) Recognition of interest incomé or expense.and dividend income
© interestincome oriexpense Is recogriised using the effective interest method,
The “effective interest rate” Isthe:rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to:
~the.gross carrying amount of the financial ‘asset;or
- the:amortised cost of thefinancial liabifity.,

I calculating Interestincomeand sxpense, the effective interest rate Is-applied fo the gross carrylng amount of the asset-or to theamortised cost of
the liability.
Dividend income is recognised in‘Statement of Profitand Loss on the date onwhich the Company’s right 10 receiva payment is established.

k) Inventories
inventories-arg valued at the lowefof ¢ost and estimated net realisable value {net of allowances) after-providing-for obsolescence and other fosses;
Where congidered necossary. The cost:-comprises cost-of purchase-and: other:costs incurced in bringing such’inventories:to-their present Jocation and
condition. Trade discounts or rebates are deducted in determining the costs:of purchase, Net realisable value réprosentsithe estimated selling-price
forinventories Jess all'estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make th salé.

Incase of traded goods; cost (net of tax credits wherever apphicable) is determinedion-aFirstIn First Out basls.
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{) teases
I. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a leaseat the inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to controlthe use of an identified asset for a period of time In exchange for consideration. To assess whethera contract conveysthe right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: {1) the contract involves-the use of an identified asset, (2) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease, and (3) the Company has the right to direct the
use of the asset.

il..Assets held under leases

At the date of commeancement of the fease, the Company recognizes-a ROU asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements under
which it is:alessee, except for short-termyleases and low value leases.

For shiort-term-leases-and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease: payments.as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
foase. The lease arrangements include.options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term, ROU assets and lease fabilities
include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be'exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises‘ the inftial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made. at or
prior to the-comhimencement date of the lease plus any‘initial.difect costs incurred-and an estimate of-costs fo dismantlé and remove the underlying
assetor torestore the underlying asset or the site-on which it islocated loss any lease incentives received.

Thevight-ofise assetis subsequently depreciated using:the stralght-ine method from the.commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful
lifezof the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful fives of right-of-use assets are determined on the:same basis as those
of property and: equipment. in addition, the right-ofise asset is periodically. reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements:of the lease liability,

The lease liability is.initially measured at the present valie of the future lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate.cannot be readily determined, the Company'sincremental borrowing rate.

Lease paymerits included in the measurement of the Jease liability comprise the fixed payments {including in substance fixed), varlable payments
based-on-anindex or rate, amounts expected to-he payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to
be exercised. Subsequent to Initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payraents. made and increased for interest.

m) tcome Tax
Income tax cotnprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in:Statement of Profit-and Loss except to:the extent recognised directly in equity or in

other comprehensive income. .

I Current Tax

Curtenttax comprises: the expected tax payable ot receivable on the taxable income or-loss-Tor the yearand any adjustment to the tax payable or
" receivable in réspect of previous years. The amount. of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amaunt expected to be paid or received after

consldering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It'ls measured- using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the

reporting date,

Current tax assets and current tax Jiabilities:are offset only ifthere is'a legally enforceable right to s6t off the recognised amounts, and it is intended

to realiseitheasset-and settlethe liability on'a riet basisor simultaneously. '

ii. Deferred Tay

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financlal reépérting purposas
andthe carrespondingamounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised 10 the extent that It is prabable: that futire taxable. profits will: be available against which they can be used.
‘Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the.extent that it Is probable/ nodonger probable respectively
ithat the.related tax banefit will be realisad,

Deferrad tax is meastired at the tax rates that are ‘expected to-apply.io the:period when the asset Is fealised - or the liability is settled; based o the
Jawsthat have been-enacted or substantively enacted by the: reporting:date;

Themeasurement of deferred tax reflacts the tax consequences that would foflow from the mannerin:which thie Company. éxpects, at:the reporting
date,torecoveror settle the careying amaunt of its assetsand liabilities.

Deferred takassets and fiabflities are.offset if there isd legally eriforceable fight to offset-current tax labilitles and assets, and they relateto income
taxes levied by‘the same tax authority ori.the same taxable entity-and it Is intended to settle the current tax assets and: liabliities on a net basis or
simultabeolisly.

n) Earnings Per Share:

. Basic:earnings per ‘eauity share are-arrivad atbased on not profit or 10§ afted tax forthe ,period/ year divided by the weighted-average numbor of
equity shares outstanding during the year;
Diluted earning per aquity share is determined after adjusting the above for dilutive potential equity shares,

0} Cash:and Cash Equivalents:
in thecash-flow statgment; cash and cash equivalents incliide. cash In hand, batance with barks, demand deposits with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with-original maturities:of thrée mionths or legs.
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p) Contingent Habilities
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past-events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-

occurrence:of ‘one or more uncertain future. events. not wholly within the: control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic: benefits will be: required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation- is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits Is remote.

q} Share Capital
Equity shares are classified as equity, Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new equity shares are recognized as a deduction from

equity.

r} Segment reporting
Qperating segments are reported in 38 manher consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision'imaker (CODM),

s} Research and development expenses
Internally gencrated intangible assets - Expenditure on research activities'is recognised as an expense in the period in'which it isincurred.
Aninternally generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development:phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if,
all of the following have been demonstrated:
* the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset'so that it will be avajlable:for Use or sale
* the intention to completé the intangibi¢:assetand use or sell it;
« the ability to use or sell thesintangible asset;
« how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
« the availability of adequatetechnical, financiatand other resources to complete the.development and to use or sell theintangible-asset: and

« the ability to measare reflably the expenditureatiributable to the intanglble asset duting its-developtment,

The amount itially recognised for internally-genérated intangible assefs Is the sun of the expenditure incurfed from the date when the intapgible
asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internallygenerated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the perfod In which its Incurred.

Subseguent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets: are reported -at cost less accumulated amertisation” and accumulated
impairmentlosses, on the same basis-as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Devélapment costs of products are also charged to. the the statement of profit and loss unléss a product’s technological féastbility has been
established, in which case such expenditure is capitalised. The amount capitalised comprises-expenditure that can be directly attributed orallocated
on a reasonable and consistent basls to creating; producing and making the asset-ready for itsintended use. Property, Plant and Equipment.utilised
forresearch and development are capitalised and depreciated in accordance with-the-policies:stated for Property; Plant and Equipment,

t) Foreign currency transactions andtranslations
The functional currency of the Company Is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the primary economic environment In which it operates.

Transactions:in currencies other than-the Caripany’s furictional currency {foreign ciirrencies) are recognized at the rates.of ex’cha’nge[brevailing'at the
date of the transaction. At'the end of each reporting period, mofetary itefns denominated fi forelgn.currencies are transfated Using mean-exchange
rate prevailing on the last day of ‘the reporting period. Non-monetary-assets and: liabliities that are measured-at fair-value'ih-a foreign currency are
‘translated into the functional currency atthe exchange rate when the fair value was determined, Norsmonetary assets and: liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in‘a-foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the.date of the transaction:

Treatiment of exchange differénces
Exchange difforences on monetary items-are recognized In the Statement of profit and loss inthe period'in which they arise.

n

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry. «of Corporate Affairs: {"MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments: 1o the existing standards under Companies {Indlan Accounding
Standards) Rules-as issued from. time to time: On March 23, 2022, MCA ainerided the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Anvendment Rules,
2022, a8 below,

(1) Ind: AS:16.~ Property Plantand equipment - The:amendment clarifies that excess of stk salel proceeds of itemis produced oviithe dost of testinyy, if
any, shall not-be recognised. in the:profit or loss but deducted from llie dirvectly attributable:vosts considered-as part of cost of anitenvof property;-plani;
* and equipment. The-effuctive date for adoption of:this.amendment is annual periods beginning onorafter April 1, 2022, The Company has evaluaied

the amendment and thereds no impact on its financial statements,

(i) 14d AS 37 ~ Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingenf Assets - The amendiieiil specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling” & contract comprises
the ‘costs that relale direclly forthe contiviet . Costs that relate directly to a vorstiact ean eiifior bie incremiental cists of £ ulfilling that contract-(cxamples
would:be direct:labouy, materials) or.an allocation of ‘otfier-costs that relate directly to fulfilling coniracts (an example would be Hficaliocation of the
dopre;_iaﬁon:cha'rge for: an item o properly, plattand equipment wsed in fulfilling the-contract). The effective date-for adoption:of this-amendment-is
; 2022, althoughearlyadoption is permitted. The: Company has evaluated: the anendiment and the iivpact is

apnuakperiods beginning o orafier April;
not expected torbe.material,




! GENESIS' GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

(iii) Ind AS 103 ~ Business Combinations: The anendiments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in. the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) dssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition
date, These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company doesnot expect the amendment to have any significant
impact in its financial statements:

{iv) Ind AS 109 -+ Financial Instraments: The amendment clarifics which fees an entity includes when it applies the “10-percent” test of Ind AS 109 in
assessing whether' {0 derecognise a financial liability. The Compaiy does not expect the amendment: lo have any significant impact in its financial
stalements.

6. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The prepacation of financial statements in conforinity with. Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the-reported amounts’of income, expenses, assets and-liabilities-and the disclosure of contingent liabllities, at:the end of the reporting period.
Although thase estimiates are based on the management’s best knowledge-of current events and. actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could resuit in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or llabiifties in future periods. Therefore,

actual results could differ from these estimates.

The estiriiates and-underlying assumptions are reviewdd on 4n origoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates arg recognized in the period in which
the estimaté is-revised if the revision affects only that period, or in:the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting: policies, management: has made the followinig judgements, which have the most significant

effect.on.the amounts recognized In the tonsolidated financial statement:

a) Allowances foruncollected tradé receivables
Trade receivables do. not.carry Interest and are stated at theli” nominal values as reduced by appropriate allowarces for estimated irrecoverabla:
amount are based on ageing of the receivable balances and-historical experiences. Individual trade reccivables are written off when management

deems not be collactible,

b} Contingencies

n'the normal ‘course of businass, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company.. There are certain obligations:
which managementsthave.concluded based on all avallable facts and circomstances are fiot probable of payment or difficultto quantify reliably:and
such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can be no assurance of the final outcome of legal
proceedings in which the: Company is involved. it is not expected that such contingencies will have material: effect: bn its financlal position. of

probability,

¢} Recoverability-of déferied taxes

In assessing the recoverability 'of defarred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that taxable profit:will be available against which
the losses. can be utilized. The ultimate realization of deferred fax. assets is dependent upon the generation of futiire. taxable intome during the
periods in which the:temporary differences become deductible,

Deferrod tax-assets arewracognized for unused tax losses to the extent thatit is probable that:taxable profit will be available-against which the losses
can’ be utilized. Significantmahiagement judgement Is:raquited to detérmine the.amount of deferred tak assets that can be recognized, based upon
the likely'timing and the leéve! of future taxable profits together with futiire'tax planning strategies.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions: concerning the future and ofher key sources. of estimation uncertainty: at-the reporting date, that: have a significant risk of
causing a. malerial adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financialyear, ‘aredescribed below, The Company based
its assumptions anid estimates-on paraiveters available when the-financial statements wete prépared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to maikit changes or dircumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company, Such
changes are reflectad In the-assiimptions when theyoccar:

a) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized forunused tax fosses to/thie extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available sgainst which the
losses cai be wtilized. 1n assessing the probability, the Company ‘considers whether the:entity hag sufficient taxabile temporary differences relaiing to
the.Same taxation authority dhd thié Same taxable-entity, which Will Fesult’in takable' amiounts-against which th unised tax: [osscs oF unused tax
credits can be utilized before'they.expire. Significant-managenment assumptions are required to.deterinine the:amouit of defeired taxassets that can
be recognized, based yponithe likely liming and the fevel of future taxable profits:together with fufure tax planwing strategies,

b) Defined bendfit plans (gratoity benefit)

The costof the defined benefit gratuity plan and the presentvalue of-the gratulty obligation até-determined Using actuarial valuations, An actuadat
valuation: involves ‘making various assumptions. that may differ from actual devélopments in the future. THess Include the determiration of the
discount-rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Dug tothe complexities involved in the valyation-and its longsterm nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive:to:changes in these assumptions, All:assumptions are reviewed at-each reporting date.
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The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate, In determining the appropriate discount rate Tor plans aperated In India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the-currencies.of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate are current best estimates. of the expected mortality rates of plan members, both -during and after employment. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and
demand in the employment market.

<) Useful life of assets of Praperty, Plant and Equipment .

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an assot's expected useful life: and the expected residual
value-at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assefs are determined by management at the time the assct is acquired
and reviewed at each financial year end,

: fw\g) P Yigonor




GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LUIMITED
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31,2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Note No.4- Prapenrty, Plant & Equipment

particulars Office Furniture Computers Total
aquipments
Gross Block
Deemed cost as at 1 April 20204 3,16,149 - 3,95,685 7,11,834
Additions for the year 1,38,683 5,200 5,76,931 7,20,814
Disposals for the year - - - -
As-at 31 March 2021 4,54,832 5,200 8,72,616 14,32,648
Balances at 1 April 2021 4,54,832 5,200 9,72,616 14,32,648
Additions for the period 16,100 - 8,49,317 8,65,417
Disposals for the period - - - -
As at 31 March 2022 4,70,932 5,200 18,21,933 22,98,065
Accumulated depreciation
Asiat 1 April 2020 - « - -
Charge for the year 1,72,875 662 386,021 5,59,558
Disposals for the year . - - -
Asat 31 March 2021 1,72,875 662 3,86,021 5,59,558
Asat 1 April 2021 1,72,875 662 3,86,021 5,59,558
Charge for the period 1,27,053 1,472 6,06,743 7,34,968
Disposals for the period - - - .
As at31 March 2022 .. .2,99,928 1,834 9,92,764 12,94,526
Carrying amounts (net)
As at 31 March 2022 i 1,731,004 3,366 8,29,169 10,03,539
As'at 31 March 2021 2,81,957 4,538 5,86,595 8,73,090
As at-01 April 2020 : T 3,146,149 - 3,85,685 7,131,834

# As on transition date Le. April 1, 2020, the Company has elected Ind AS 101. exemiption to'continue with the carrying value.under Previous GAAP for all of

its property; plant and equipment.as its deemed cost on the date of transitionto Ind:AS,

Particulars ) .(')fﬁce " Furniture Computers Total

Gross Block 8,00,419 - 808,618 16,11,037
Accumulated Depreciation . 4,84,270 - 4,12,933 8,97,203
Carrying Value {deemed cost) asat.1 April 2020* 3,16,149 “ 3,95,685 7,11,834




GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amourits in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Note No.5- Intangible assets

Total intangible

Gross Block Software

Assets
Deemed costasatl April 20204 3,58,27,571 3,58,27,571
Additions for the year - -
Disposals for the year - -
Asat:31 March 2021 3,58,27,571 3,58,27,571
Balances.at-} April 2021 3,58,27,571 3,58,27,571
Additions for the period 2:61,20473 2,61,20473
Disposals for the period - -
As at 31 March 2022 6,19,48,044 €,19,48,044
Accumulated depreciation
As-at 1 Aprif 2020: - -
Charge for the year 38,64,616 38,64,616
Disposals for the year - -
As at 31 March 2021 38,64,616 38,64,616
As.at 1 April 2021 38,64,616 38,64,616
Charge for the period 41,44,162 41,44,162
Disposals for the period - -
As at31 March 2022 80,08,778 80,08,778
Carrylng amounts (net)
As at31 March 2022 5,39,15,616 5,39,15,616
Asat 31 March2021 3,19,62,955 3,'19,62,955
Asat LAptil 2020 3,58,27,871 3,58,27,571

# As OH transition date e, April 1, 2020, the Company has elected Ind AS-101 exemption to continue with'the carrying value under Previous GAAP for-all of

its property, plantand equipment as its deemed costion the date of transition to Ind 4S,

Total Intangible

Particulars Software
Assets
Gross Block 3,79,52,972 3,79,52,972
Accumulated Depreciation 21,25,401 21,25,401
Catrying Value (deemed cost)as-at 1 Aptil 2020 3,58,27,571 3,58,27,571
Noté No.6-Intanigible assets under development
Asat As at Asat
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 01.04:2020
intangible assetsunder development: ) - 1,61,22,296 e
- 1,61,22,296 -
_intangible assets under developmentageing schedule on March 31, 2022
- - Amount in CWIP for.a period of
Particulars Less thanl More than 3 Totai
year 1-2 years 2-3'years years
Projects in:progress - . - - -
Projects temporarily suspended : - - L - - -
Intangible assets under development agelng schedule-on Mairch 31, 2021
' k Amount In CWIP-for a period of
Particulars Less than 1 ) ' More than3 Total
o year 1-2years 2-3iyears. years )
Projects in progress ' 1,61,22,296 P . - 1,61,22,296
Projectstemporarily suspended s - i« - -
. 1,63,22,296 s - - 1,61,22,296
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GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except pershare data or as otheiwise stated

Note No.7-Deferred Tax Assets (net)

As at As at As at
Particulars .
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 01.04.2020
Deferred Tax Assets
Expenses.deductible in future years.on payment basis 5,34,345 3,79,31% 2,65,185
Carry forward losses 9,35,708 12,00,875 -
Total Deferred Tax Assets (A) 14,70,053 15,80,190 2,65,185
Deferred Tax Liability
Property, plant and eguipment and other intangible assets 43,36,242 28,183,126 14,07,371
Yotal Deferred Tax Liability (8} 43,36,242 28,183,126 14,07,371
Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liability) recognised -28,66,188 -12,32,938 <11,42,186
Note No,8- Income tax assets'(het)
As at As at As.at
Particulars .
) 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 01.04.2020
Advance Tax-and Tax deducted at source 30,606,605 28,63,478 28,72,393
Provision of taxes - - -11,66,864
30,66,605 28,638,478 17,05,529
Note No.9- Other assets .
As at As at As at
Particulars )
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 01.04.2020
“Other non current assets )
Capital advances 3,23,35,600 3,23,35,600 -
3,23,35,600 3,23,35,600 .
Othercurrent assets
Balance:with government authorities 2,53,295 3,31;184 545,787
Advance to Suppliers 6,96,25,060 2,38,932 -
Prepald expenses 5,548 - -
6,98,83,903 570,116 5,45,787
Note No,10- lnvéntorles . .
Asat  Asat; As at
Particulat . ) .
’ @ 31.03.2022: 31.03.2021 01.04.2020
Stock in trade 87,20,460 @ -
87,20,460 -~ ;
Note No,11- Trade recelvables
Asat Asat Asat
Particulars )
31,03.2022 31032021 01.04.2020
Trade Receivabiles considered good - unsecured 75,59,528 28,13,303 57,13,929

Trade:Receivables-which have significant increase in-credit sk - - -
Trade Recéivables « creditimpaired. « . .
Loss allowange _— - .

75,59,528 128,13,308 57,13,92¢9




GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts In INR, exceptper share data or as otherwise stated

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2022

particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
months

6 months
«lyear

1-2
Years

2-3
years

1} Undisputed Trade receivables ~-considered good

i} Undisputed Trade Recelvables — which have significant increase in
credit risk

ili} Undisputed Trade: Receivables ~ credit impaired

iv) Disputed Trade receivables ~ considered good

v) Disputed Trade Receivables— which have significant increase in
credit risk

vi} Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Trade recelvables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2021

More than
3 years

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 6 6 months 12 2-3 More than
months -1yeat Years years Syears
1) Undisputed Trade receivables ~ considered good
i) Undisputed Trade.Receivables ~— which have significant increase in
credit risk ~ - - - ~
iii} Undisputed Trade Receivablés — credit impaired - « - -
iv} Disputed Trade receivables— considered good B B " - -
v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significantincrease in
creditrisk E . - . -
vi} Disptited Trade Receivables — credit impaired - ~ “ - -
Note No.12- Cash.and cash.equivalents
' ) Asat Asat As at
Particulars ) )
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 01.04,2020
Cash and cash.equivalents
Balances with banks
- On-current accounts 38,21,503 1,80,701 1,15,293
- On bank deposits-with original maturity of less than three/months 2,00,21,069 - -
Cash on hand, 8,05,585 5,91,445 3,31,653
Cash and cash-equivalents 2,46,48;157 7,82,146 4,46,946
Note:No13-Other financial assets .
'  Asat Asat As at
Particulars . - )
31.03.2022 31.03,2021 01.04,2020
Current
Considered good« Unsecured
Securlty Deposits 13,000 63,000 5,000
_13,000 . 63,000 5,000




GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the.year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Note No.14- Equity share capital

As at 31.03,2022 As at 31.03.2021 v As at 01,04.2020
Number of Value Number of Value Nurmber of share Value
shares shares

Authorised share capital 50,000  5,00,000.00 50,000.00  5,00,000.00 50,000.00  5,00,000.00
(Equity shares of Re. 10/~ each)

Issued, subscribed & fully paid up 40,000 4,00,000.00 40,000.00 4,00,000,00 40,000.,00 4,00,000.00
(Equity shares of Re: 10/~ each)
Total 40,000  4,00,000.00 40,000.00.  4,00,000.00 40,000.00  4,00,000.00
Notes:

(a) The rights, preferences and restrictions attached to.each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment
The Companyhas only ohe class of equity shares having a-par value of % 10 per share. Each'shareholders eligible for one vote per share held. In the
event of liguidation, the-equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the-Company,.after distribution of all preferential amounts, in

{b) Reconclliation ofthe number of shares and amountoutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the'year:

Particulats As at.31,03.2022 As at 31.03,2021
Number of Value Number of Value
shares shares
Equity shares:outstanding at the 40,000.00  4,00,000.00 40,000.00  4,00,000.00
beginning-of the year
Add: shares issued during the year - - - -
Less: Sharés bought back during the period/year - - B -
Eqgiiity sharesoutstanding at the end of 40,000.00  4,00,000.00 40,000.00  4,00,000.00
{c) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% of total number of equity shares:
As-at 31,03.2022 Asat:31.03.2021 As at:01.04.2020
Numberof  %Holdingin  Numberof  %Holdingin  Numberof 9% Holding in
sharestheld that class of shares held thatclass of shares held. that class of
shares shares shares
Equity shares of:Rs.10/- gach
AP -Securitas Private Limited . 0.00% 22,000,00 55.00% 22,000.00 55.00%
Puri Family Trust: : - 0.00%: 4,000:00 10.00% 4,000.00 10.00%
Vikas Chadha 4,000 10.00% 4,000,00 10.00% 4,000.00 10.00%
Indrajeet 3,000 7.50% 5,000.00 12.50% 5,000.00 12.50%
Anshurnali Bhushan 3,000 7.:50% 5,000.00 12.50% 5,000.00 12.50%

Vikas Life Care Limited 30,000 75:00%




GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts In INR, except per share-data or as otherwise stated

Note No.15-Other Equity

Asat As at Asat
Particulars
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 01.04,2020

Retained earnings
At the commencement of the year 45,16,707 42,46,795 42,46,795
Add: Profit for the year 53,49,066 2,69,274 -
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year

Re-measurements-of the defined benefit plans 14,934) 638 -
At the end of the period 98,50,839 45,16,707 42,46,795
GRAND TOTAL 98,50,839 45,16,707 42,46,795

15.1 Nature and ‘purpose of reserves
Retained earnings

Retained Earnings represents surplus / deficitin staternent of profitandoss account accumulated overyears.




GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED.

Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Note:-No.16-Borrowings

Particulars As at Asat As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 01,04.2020
Current
Unsecured
Borrowings from Director 3,07,47,882 3,07,47,882 2,71,97,882
Borrowings from Related Party 4,65,00,000 4,65,00,000 .
Borrowings from Other Corporates R,78,32,828 - -
16,50,80,710 7,72,47,882 2,71,97,882
Note No.17- Trade Payables
. As at As at Asat
Particulars 31,03.2022 31.03.2021 01,04.2020
Total outstianding dues to.micro enterprises and small
enterprises -
Total o?tstandmg dues.to Cl‘E‘dItOIS other than micro 1,95,62,602 10,28,788 95,587,069
enterprises and small enterprises
1,95;62,602 10,28,788 95,87,069

Trade payable ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022

QGutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Lessithan 1 12 2-3 More than
o Total
Year* Years yeats 3years
{i) MSME - . - - -
{ii) Others 1,16,000 1,94,46,602 - - 1,95,62,602
{ii§} Disputed dues ~ MSME - - - - -
{iv)Disputed dues - Others - “ - - -
1,16,000 1,94,46,602: - - 1,95,62,602
Trade payable-agelng schedule as on March31, 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
particutars Less than.1 12 2:3 More than
. Total
Year* Years years- 3 years .
(i) MSME - - - - -
{ii} Others 82,386 9:46,402 - - 10,28,788
{iii} Disputed dues ~ MSME ~ - - . -
{iv}Disputed.dues.~ Others - - - - -
82,386 9,46,402 . - 10,28,788
Note No.18- Other Financial Liabllitles
Asat Asat Asat
Parﬁcuhff 31,03:2022 31.03.2021 01.04;2020°
Current o
Security Depsoits 37,000 71,000 12,000
Othiet Payables- Employees dues payable 8,05,504 10,77,251 11,26,438
8,42,504 11,48,251 11;38,438
Note:No,18- Otheér Liabllities . N
' ' A At : Asat Asat
Particulits 31,03.2022 31,03.2021 0L:04:2070
Curgent B
Statutory liabilities 4,20,454 13,04,286 1,90,568
4,720,454 13,04,286 1,90,568
_Note No.20:Provisions
i . As.at Asat Asat
Baticulars 31.03.2022 31032021 01.04.2020
Non-Curent’ - '
a) Provision'foreniployee benefits
~Gratuity 18,16,904 14,56,399 9,594,966
718,16,004 14,56,399 9,594,966
Current. .
Provision for employee benefits
~Gratuity 3,06;207 - 50,735 58,692,

3,06.207 50,735 58,692




GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LINHTED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Note N6.21~Revenue from operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2022 31,03.2021
Sale of services
- Income from Operation and Maintenance Charges 1,25,54,832 1,82,03,223
- Income from Outsourcing of manpower 2,03,20,643 21,00,761
Sale of Goods 11,36,02,273 .
14,64,77,748 2,03,03,984

Note No.22-Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Interest income 7,61,139 -

Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation 6,28,628 .
13,89,767 .

Note No.23-Change. in Stock in trade

Particulars

For the year ended

Forthe year ended

31.03.2022 31.03,2021
Opéning Stock in trade - -
Closing:Stock in trade 87,20,460 -
-87,20,460 .

Note No.24-Employee benefits expensé

Particulars

For the year-endetl

For the year ended

o 31.03.2022 31.03,2021
Salatiessnd wages 1,66,86,683 89,39,665
Contribution to provident and other funds 5,30,297 1,11,620
staff welfare expenses 1,834,741 3,76,351

1,73,51,721 94,27,636

Note No,25-Finance Costs

For the yea('andéd

For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2022 81.03,2021
Intarest paid on OD 7,69,599 :
7,69,599 -

Note No.26-Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars

Forthe yearended

For the year ended

; 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Depietidtion-of property, plant and equipment 7,384,968 5,59,558
Amortisation of other intangible assets 41,44,163 38,64,616

48,779,131 44,284,174

o,
SRR




GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Note No.27-Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

31.03,2022 81.03.2021

Job Work 56,28,201 20,70,520
Clearing & Forwading 41,52,454 52,165
Power and fuel 3,17,572 1,95,620
Tender Fee 68,396 20,154
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery/Others 2,30,159 36,039
Consumable 6,78,688 8,60,688
Taxi Hire Charges 7,912 5,945
Server Charges 3,46,834 3,36,600
Legal and professional 18,93,916 9,63,779
Rates and taxes 4,383,573 18,630
General Office Expenses 29,820 8
Advertissment & Publicity - 60,274
Subscription Fees 74,891 49,087
insurance 87,379 64,747
Electricity 15,008 3,904
Rent 10,14,000 3,88,800
Printing and stationery 23,742 8,571
Travelling and conveyance 14,46,202 4,22,584
Business Promotion Expense 195,450 48,605
Internet Expenses. 14,248 -
Water Expenses 5,653 -
Warehouse Charges: 59,455 1,684
Telephone Expenses 9,85,084 2,16,777
Payment to Auditors 1,60,000 40,000
Diwali Expenses 18,427 62,416
Baddebts 40,500 -
Bahk Charges 4,41,654 '1,22(329
Miscellaneous:expenses 2,616 326

_1,83,71,832 60,50,243

Note No.28-Payment to statutory auditors:

Forthe year ended

Forthe'year ended

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03:2021

Statutory audit 100,000 40,000

Tax audit 60,000 P
1,60,000 40,000




GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Wotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Al amounts n INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Note No.29-Tax expense

{A) Ihcame tax expense recognised in profit or loss

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Current tax:on profit for thé period/year . .

Tax for earlier years . .

Total Current Tax Expense " .

Deferred tax

Attributable to:-

Originating and reversa! of temporary differences 16,38,276 90,535

Total Deferred Tax EXpense 16,38,276 90,535

Total income Yax Expense 16,38,276 90,535

(B) Income tax expense recognised In other comprehensive income

Particulars For the year ended Forthe year ended
. $1.03.2022 31.03.2021

Attributable toi

Remeasurement of defined benefit Hability {asset) 5,023 -214

Total Deferred Tax Expenses 5,023 -214

{C) Reconciliation of efféctive tax rate

The major components of ificonie tax éxpense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate and the reported tax

expense In Statement.of Profit and Loss ara as follows:

Particulars For theyear ended Forthe yearended
) . 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Profit / {Loss) beforetax 69,87,342 3,59,809
Effective tax.rate 25.168% 25.168%
Taxusing the Company’s domestic taxrate 17,58,574 90,557
Effect.of:
Change in effective. tax rate
Incorie not taxable
Nan-deductible expenses
Changes in estimatesrelated to prioryears
Others i
Total 17,58,574 90,557
{D} Components of Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
forthe period ended 30.5eptember2021
particulars Opening Balance Récognised In
Statefnent of Profit
and Loss
Tax-effect of itemsiconstituting deferred tax Habllitles
Property, plantand gquipment and other Inta ngibleassets 28,13,126 15,23,116
Gross Defered Tax:Liability (3) 28,13,126 15,23,116
Tax effect of tems constitiiting deferred tax asséts
Expenses-deductible In-future yearson.payment basls 3,79315 1,50,007
Carry forward lossas 12,00,875 -2:65,167
Gross Deferred Tax Assets (b) 15;80;190 -1,15,160
Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liability) (bic-a) -12,32,936 ~16,38,276
For the year ended 31 Mairch2021
particulars Opening Balante Recognisedin
Statement of Profit
‘ and.Loss
Taxefect of tems constituting deferred tax fiabilities
Property, plantand equipment and other intangible assets _A4,07.371 14,085,755
Gross Deferred Tax Liabllity {a): 18,07,371 14,085,755
Tak effect of ftems constituting deferred tax assets
Expenses deductible In fufure years on-payment basis 2,65,185 1,184,344
Carty forward losses . 12,00,875
Gross Deferred Tax Assets (b} 2,65,185 13,15,219
+11,42,186 -90,536.




GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated
Note No.30-Earnings per share

The calculations of profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for purposes of basic

and diluted earnings per share calculation are as follows:

i. Profit (loss) attributable to equity shareholders{basic/diluted)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
ral 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Profit for the period/year, attributable to the equity holders 53,489,066 2,69,274
ii. Weighted average number of equity shares (basic/diluted)* 7,40,00,000 7,40,00,000
Opening balance 3,70,00,000 3,70,00,000
Isste of Equity shares ‘
Weighted average number of equity shares for the périod/year* 7,40,00,000 7,40,00,000
Basicand Diluted Earhings per share 0.07 0.00

*Note: The equity shares and basic/diluted earnings pershare has been presented to reflect the adjustmerits for stock split subsequent to

30 September 2021 in-accordance with Ind AS 33 - Earnings per Share.{refer note 49 {c}).
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GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE UMITED

Notes tothe financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

All amounts In INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

Note No.31 -Employee benefits Hability

The Company operates the following post-employment defined benefit plans:

A..Defined contribution plan

Contribution towards provident fund plan are classified ds Defined contribution plan as the Company does not carry leal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions apart from the contribbutions made on monthly basis which are charged to'Statement of profit and loss account as.incurred.

The amount.of contribution made by the Company to employees provident fund is Rs.4,02,254/- (Rs. 59,166/-) and other funds is Rs. 1,28,043/- (Rs.

52,454/},

8. Defined benefits plan
i} Gratuity

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or'more of service receives gratuity on leaving the

Company-as per the Payments of Gratuity Act; 1972, The scheme is unfunded.

Thee following table shows a.reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit liability and its components.

A, Net liability / {assets) recognised In the balance sheet

F. Sensitivity analysls of the defined benefit obligation:

ot

Particulars Asat Asat Asat
31,03,2022 31.03.2021 01.04.2020
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year/ period (b) 21,23,111 15,07,134 10,53,658
Fair value of plan.assets at the end of the year (a) - - -
Liability / {assets) recognized in the balance sheet {a « b} 21,23,111 15,07,134 10,53,658
8. Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
Partioul ) year ended year ended
articulars ‘ 31,03.2022 31,03:2021
Defined benefit obligation: at the beginning of the period/ year 15.07:134 10,53;658
Current service:cost . 502,644 3,87;995
Intérest cost 93,376 66,333
Actuarial (gain)floss 19,957 {852)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year/ period 21,238,111 15,07,134
C, Reconciliation of Change in plan assets .
particul year ended year ended
articutars - ‘ 31,03.2022  31.032021
Fair valoe of plan-assets at the beginning of the year - -
Actual return.on-plan assets - -
Present walue of obilgation at the end of the-year o -
D. Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: . . .
, yearended  vyearended
Particulars 31.03.2022  31,03.2021
Current service cost 3,75,546 8,24,903
nterest cost (49,710) (1,40,437)
Expense-recognized Ih the statement of profit and loss 3,25,836 _6,84,466
E. Remeasurements recognised.in other comprehensive income:

) o T yearended  yearended
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
~change in financial assurnptions (45,750} 10,394
-experience variance {i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) 65,797 {11,246).
Remeasuremenits.recognlsed In other comprehensive income 19,957 <(852)
E. Actuarlal-assumptions:: N

) o Asat Asat Asat
Particulrs 31032022 31032021 01042020
‘Discount rate (%) 655 620 630
Fu’ture'sa'ar_y increases{%) 7.00 7.00 T.00
Retirement age {years) 05,00 65.00 65:00
Withdrawal rate (%) 15,00 15.00 15.00

e TALM (2012- TIALM TALM
Morkality rate 14) Q012-14)  (2012-14)
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tmpact of change in Discount Rate Satary Attrition Mortality
Growth Rate Rate Rate
Present value of obligation as on-March 31, 2022 21,;23,111 21,23,111 21,23,111 21,23,111
Imipact due toincrease of 1% (1,21,174) -1,33,303 (1,026) (6)
fmpact due to decrease of 1% 1,35,222 (1,21,770) 1,468 6
Impact of change in Discount Rate Salary Attrition Mortality
Growth Rate Rate Rate
Present value of obligation as on' March 31,2021 15,07,134 15,07,134 15,07,134 15,07,134
{mpact due to increase of 1% ’ {98,524} 1,08,935 {2,839) (5)
{mpact due to decrease of 1% 1,10,876 {98,699) 3,615 5
G. Expected contribution for the next Annual reporting perfod/year
o Asat Asat
icul
Particulars . 31032022 31032021

Expected Expense for the next annual reporting year®
*Since the scheme is managed on‘unfunded basis, the nextyear contribution Is:taken as-nil.

H. Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

- As at Asat As at
Particutars o ; 31032022 31032021  01.04.2020
Weighted average duration {based on:discounted cashflows) 6 Years 7 Years 7 Years
Expected cash flows over the next {valued on undiscounted basis):

1 year 3,06,207 50,735 58,692
210 5years 11,18,313 8,16,917 5,12,211
6to10years 8,63;251 7,16,009 5,39,309
More than 10 years 11,18,104 9,24,100° 7,00,859

34,05,875 25,07,761 18,11,071

I, Description.of Risk Exposures
Valuations are performed o certain basic set.of pre-detefmined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary ovar time, Thus, the

Company is exposed to various risks in prov;dmg the above gratuity benefit-whichvare as follows:

Liquidity Risk: This is therisk that the Company s not:able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts, This may arise due to non availabiity of enough cash
/ cash equivalentto meet:the liabilities or fxoiding of illiquid assets not.being sofd in time,

Salary Escalation Risk: The present-value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assuraption of salary increase rate of plan participants in
future, Deviation in the rate.ofincrease of salary in future for plan participants from therate of increase in salary used 1o determine the present value of
obligation will have a-bieating on the plan's liabilty:

Demographic Risk: The Company has used-certain mortality and attrition.assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of
actual experience turning out to be worse conipared to theassumption,

Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefit is:paid in accordance with the requicements of the Payment.of Gratuity Act, 1972 {as amended from time to-time).
There isa risk of change ifi regulations fequiring higher gratuity payouts {e.g; Increase it the maximum limit-ongratuity of Bs. 20,00,000},

Note No.-32 Detalls of dues to ticto:and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 : —
Asat Asat Asat
L , .
Particulars 3 , 51032022 31032021  01.04.2020

a. The amounts remaining unpaid to micro:and small enterprises as-atthe endof the period

-~ Principal

- interest

b: “The arfiount of interest pald by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006

< Theansounts of the payrients made to niicroand small supplicrs beyond the:appolnted day:during
each accounting period

4. The:amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in-making payment {which have
been paid but beyond the-appointed day during the period) but without adding thi interest specified
under Micro Small and Medium Enferprisés Dévélopment Act; 2006

e, The amount of interest accriied: arid: remalning unpald at the:end of each accounting period

f. The amount of further interest: remalning due-and payable.even in the succeeding petiods; until
such date When the interest duesias above are actually paid to the small enterprise for thie purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditire under the Micro Siall and: Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006
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Note No.-33 Segment reporting

Basls of segmentation }
The Company's operating business is-organised and managed as & single reportable operating segment, narely Gas Meters which accordingly assists the

Company's management in taking operating decisions and there aré no other business/geographical segments to be reported. Therefore the disclosure
requirements of Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, are-not required to be givenin respect of information about reportable segments.

Note No.34-Contingent liabilities
Particulars : Asat Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03:2021 01.04.2020
i) Claims-against the.company not-acknowledged as debt - - - ~
ii) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees “ E B
iii} Other moneyfor which the company is contingently liable . -
Note No.-35 Commitments
Particulars : Asat Asat As at
) 31.03,2022 31.03.2021 01.04.2020
Estimated amount of contracts reamining to be executed on capital 49,01,38,839 §4,75,90,420 )

account and not provided for

As at Match 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 the Corpany had capital commitment refates to-estimated amount:of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital accountand not provided for, net.of advanceif any, inrespect of acquisition of technology under technology transfecagreement dated January 7,

2021 and acquisition of plant.and machinery for the project.
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Note No.-36 Related Party Disclosure

A.Name-of the Related Parties and description of relationship is as follows

a) Holding Company

b) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

c} Fellow Subsidiary

d} Enterprises.over which KMP and their relative
aré able to-exercise significant Influénce

AP Securitas Private Limited (upto January 13, 2022)
Vikas Lifecare Limited (W.ef, January 13, 2022)

Directors

Mr. Anit Puri

M. Vikas Chadha

Mr. Anshumali Bhushan

Mr, Indrajeet

Mr. Chandan Kumar (w.e.f, March 11, 2022}

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Dhawan {w.e.f, March 11, 2022)

Vijayant Facility Services Private limited (upto January 13, 2022)

Genesis Utilities Private Limited

B..Detalls of related party transactions during the vear are as below:

Holding Key Eriterprises over Felfow Total
Company Managerial  which KMP and their Subsidiary
Particulars Petrsonnel relative are-ableto
exercise significant
. influence
Short term-borrowings taken
M. Anil Puri - - - - “
Mr. Anil Puri {previous year} - (35,50,000) - « {35,50,000)
Vikas Lifecare Limited 8,72,28,020 - - - 8,72,29,020
Vikas Lifecare Limited (previous year) - - ~ - B
A P.Securitas Private Limited - - - - -
AP Securitas Private Limited {previous year) {4,65,00,000} = - {4,65,00,000)
Rendering of Services
A P:Securitas Private Limited 1,16,95,688 " - - 1,16,95,688
APSecuritas Private Limited {previous year) (1,44,08,400) - - {1,44,08,400)
Rental Expenses
A'P:Securitas Private Limited 9,72,000 - - 9,72,000
APSeciifitas Private Limited (previous yeat) {9,00,000) - - - {9,00,000)
Sale of Gas Meter/Rendering of Services.
Vijayant Facility Services Private Limited . - . E 23,18,866 23,18,866
Vijayant Facility Services Private Limited (previous year) - - {37,94,824) {37,94,824)
Interest on Loan
Vikas Lifécare Limited 769,599 - - 7,69,599
Vikas Lifecare Limited (previous year): - - - - N
Director’s Remuneration
Mr: Anshumali Bhushan 19,59,060 . - 19,59,060
M Anshumali Bhushan {previous year) ~ (31,80,000} - - {31,80,000)
My, Indrajeet - 19,59,060 : . 19,59,060
Mr; indrajeet {previous year) - (31,80,000) - {31,80,000)
Purchase of Software Application
Genesis Utilities Private Limited - s - - -
Genesis Utifities Private Limited (previoisiyéar) - - {98,00,000) {98,00,000}
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C. Detatls of closing balances of related parties ave as below:

Asat As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 April 1, 2020
Short term borrowings
Vikas Lifecare Limited 8,78,32,828 -
AP Securitas Private Limited - 4,65,00,000 -
Mr. Anil Puri 3,03,47,882 3,03,47,882 2,67,97,882
Mr. Anshumali Bhushan 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000
M. Indrajeet 3,00,000 3,00,000 3,00,000
Trade Receivables
A P Securitas Private Limited - 1,96,503 23,21,448
Vijayant Facility Services Private Limited - 13,58,688 73,71,499
Trade Payables
A P Securitas Private Limited - 82,875 2,46,249
Payable for capital goods
Genesis Utilities Private Limited - “ 89,20,631
Director's Remunaration Payable
Mr. Anshumali Bhushah 1,68,176 64,950 1,88,500

1,56,320 64,950 1,88,500

Nir. Indrajeet

Note No.-37 Capital Management

£quity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Cormpany's capital management, The Company’s objective for capital
mahagement is to manage its capital so as to safeguard its ability tocontinue:as a going concern and to support the growth of the Company. The capital
structure of the Compahy is based on management’s judgement of its: strategic.and day-to-day needs with a focus on total ‘equity so as to maintain
investors, creditors and ‘market: confidence, The funding requirements_are met through -equity and operating cash. The Companyis not subject toany

‘externally imposed ¢apital requirements.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio-of ‘adjusted.net debt' to ‘total equity’. For this-purpose, adjusted net debt is défined a5 total liabilities less

cash and cash equivalents while:equity.comprises-of all components:of equity.

The Company's adjusted adjusted net debtto equity ratio was as follows,

As at As at As at
Particulars | 31,03.2022 31.03.2021 01.04.2020
Total Liability 19,10,81,585 8,34,69,276 4,03,09,801
Less: Cashand cash equivalents 2,46,48,157 7,82,146 4,46,946
Adjusted Net Debt: 16,64,33,428 8,26,87,131 3,98,62,855
Total Equity 1,03,34.456 49,16,707 46,46,795
o 16,10 ©16.82 8.58

Adjusted net debtto-equity.ratio

-------- Space has been left blank intentionally- -
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Note No.-38 Financial Instruments - Fair values-and risk management
A. Accounting classifications and fair values

{1} The following tables shows the carrying amounts and fair values of

¢
March 31, 2022
Carrying amount Falr Value
Particulars Financial assets at  FVOClequity  Total carrying levell  Level2 Level 3 Total
Amortised Cost instruments amount
Financlal Asset not measured at falr value
Trade receivables 75,15,614 B 75,15,614 - - 75,15,614 75,15,614
Cash and.cashequivalents 2,46,48,157 - 2,46,48,157 - - 2,46,48,157 2,46,48,157
Others financial assets 13,000 - 13,000 ~ - 13,000 13,000
3,21,76,771 - 3,21,76,771 - - 3,21,76,771 3,21,76,771
Financjal Liabilities not measured at falr value .
Borrowings 16,50,80,710 - 16,50,80,710 - - 16,50,80,710 16,50,80,710
Trade payables 1,95,59,739 “ 1,95,59,739 % - 1,95,59,739 1,_9_5,59{739
Other financial liahilities 8,42,504 - 8,42,504 - - 8,42,504 . 8,472,504
18,54,82,953 - 18,54,82,953 - - 18,54,82,953 18,54,82,953
March 31,2021 .
Carrying amount Fair Value
Particulars Financial assets ;t lfVOCi-equtty Total carryfng tevell  Level2 Level 3 Total
Amortised Cost instruments amount.
Financial Asset not measured atfaic value
Trade receivables 28,13;303 . 28,13,303 - 28,13,303 28,13,303
Cash aiid cash équivalents 7,82,146 - 7,82,146 - B 7.82,146 7.82,146
Others financial assets 63,000 - 63,000 - - 63,000 63,000
36,58,448 - 36,58,448 - ~ 36,58,448 36,58,448
Financial Liabilities not measured at fair value:
Botrowings 7.72,47,882 7,72,47,882. - - 772,471,882 1,72,47,882
Trade payables 10,28;788 - 10,28,788 “ - 10,28;788 10,28,788
Other financial liabiities 11:48,251 - 11,48,251 - - 1~1,48,251 13,48,251
7:94,24,921 “ 7,94,24,921, - : 7,94,24,923, 79 Q,24,921
Aptll 1, 2020
) Carryingamount Fair Value:
Particulars: Finan_c_is.\l as_ssgts at FVOCl-equity: Totalcarrying. Levell  level2 Level3 Total
Armortised Cost Instruments amount
Financial Asset not measured at fair value
Trade receivables 57,138,929 - 57,13,9;2’9} « - 57,13,929 57,13,929
Cash and cash equivalents 446,946 - 4,46,946 - - 446,946 4,46,946
Othersflnaticial assets 5,000 - 5,000 = - 5,000 5,000
61,65875 . 61,65,875 - - 61,65,875: 61,65,875
Financlal Lisbllities:not measured at fairvatue
Borrowings: 2,71,97,882 . 2,71,97,882 - 2,71,97,882  2,71,97,882
Trade payables 95,87,069 - 95,87,069 % . 95,87,069° 95,87,069
Other financial liabllities 11,38,438 - 11,'38,43}__ - - ’ 11,38.438 11,38,438
3,79,23,389 - 3,79,23,389 - - 3,'79,23,389 '3,79,23,389

{ii) Faievalue hlerarchy

“This section: explalns the judgenerits and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments. that are (a) recognised and
measured al-fafr value and (b) measured at amortised cost and:for which fair values are.disclosed in financial Information, To provide an indication
abotit thereliability of Inputs dsed in determiining falr values; the group has classified its financial nstruments into three levels prescribed under the

accounting standards,
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The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be-exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Thefollowing table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s asset and liabilities, grouped into Level 110 Level 3 as

Level 1: Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuation techniquies for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is-directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

There were no transfers
between Level 1, level 2 and
Level 3 during the period.

Measurement of fair values

{i} Valuation techniques used

to determine fair value

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial asséts or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available. The
fair values of the financial assets and liabifities'are included at the.amount:that would be received to sclf an asset or paid totransfer a liability in an

P . E S TN

Specific valuation technique used to value financial instiument includes:
>the use of quoted market prices.or dealer quotes for similar
> the fair value of financial assets and liabilities at amortised costis determined using

The following method and assumptions are used o estimate fair values:
The carrying amounts of trade receivables; cash:and rash equivalents, bank balances, investment in bonds, loans, other financial assets, trade
payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities, are considered to be thelr fair value , due to thelr shoft term nature,

---Space has beenleft blank intentionally-«-
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Note No,-39 Financlal Instruments - Falr values and risk management

C, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEIVIENT

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
< marketrisk (see note {36) (11});

- credit risk {see note (36} {I1)}; and

- liquidity risk {see note (36) (IV)).

Risk management framework
The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility’ for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework,

The board of directors are;responsible for developing and:monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

The'Company's risk-management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls:and to monitor risks and.adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems- are réviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Coinpaty's dctivities.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk: that 'chahges in market prices - suich as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - will:affect the Company's income. The
objectiveof marketrisk: management is to manage-and control fnarket risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

{a) interest rate risk
At the reporting date thie interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments wasas follows:

) As at Asat As at
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 01.04.2020
‘Financial assets '

Term deposits included in cash and cash equivalents 2,00,21,069 . -

Fair Value Sensitivity Analysis for Fixed Rate Instruments
The: Company. doés not-account for any fixed rate financlal assets and liabifities at fair vatue through. prof t or loss, Therefore, a change in

interest rates at the reporting date-would not affect:profit orloss.

i1l Creditrisk
Credit risk 45 the tisk-of financial loss to-the Companyif a-customer or counterparty to a:financial instrument fails to meet-its contractual
obligations; and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers; foans and investrient in bonds:
Exposure tocredit risk:
The:cartying amount of financial assets and.contract assets represents the maximuni credif -exposure. The maximum exposure to crédit tisk at
the reporting date was:

Particulars : Asat - ' As ?t k As a't_

T ) o ~31.,03.2022 . 31.03:2021 01,04.2020
Trade Receivables (gross) ) 1,155,614 68,13,303 97,13,929
Cash & cash equivalents 2/46,48,157 7.82,146 4,46,946
Other Finahcial Assets . » 13,000 ) 63,000 5,000

3,61,76,771 o 76,58,448 1,01,65,875

Trade receivables

The Company's expostre 1o credit sk Is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, However, managerent also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of #s customer base, including default risk associated with the country in which
customers Qperates.

The risk-management committee has established a-eredit:policy under which each-new customéer is analysed individially for creditworthiness
before the Company's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered; The Company's: review includes external taitings, if
they:-are-available.Salelimits are established for each-custorner and reviewed yearly.

The Company Ilmits its exposureto creditrisk from trade recenvables by establishing & maximtim paymernt period of one to three months for jts'
customers.

The Companyallocates each éxposure to-a:credit risk based.on & variety.of data that is determined.to be predictive of the risk of loss {including
but not lirmited to external ratings and cash flow projections-and available pressinformationabouticustomers) and applying experignced credit
judgement,

An expected creditloss rateds calculated:for receivables, based on delinquency status.and actual credit loss:experiénce over the past thrée
years, Thesé rates:dre miiftiplicd byscalar factors to reflect differsnces hietween-economicconditions diiring the period over which the historic
data has beencollected,-current conditions and the Company’s view.of economic-conditions over the expected ives of the receivables.

10ss rates afe calculatéd using a ‘roll rate’ niethod based on the probability of a recelvable progressing through successive stages of
delinquencyto write-off: Roll rates are-calculated separately for exposuresin eachcategory.
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Following is the movemnet in the ECL provision:

Forthe year ended. For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 01.04.2020
Provision at the beginning of the year 40,00,000 40,00,000 40,00,000
Change during the year . - o -
Provision at the end of the year 40,00,000 40,00,000 40,00,000

Financlal instrument {other than Trade receivable)

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in:deposits with banks and financial institutions with. high
credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. In other financial assets, that are not past dues and not impaired,
there were no indication of defaultin repayrentias at the year end.

\% Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations.assaciated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company’s approach to mandging liquidity is to ensure, as far as-possible, that it will
have'sufficient liquidity to.meet its liabilities when they are due, under hoth normal and stressed conditions, withaut incurring unacceptable
losses or- fisking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company ises activity-based costing to. cost its services, which assists it. in
monitoring cash flow requirements and optimising its cash return on investments.

The-Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly-marketable debt investments at an amount in excess
of expected cash outflows on financial fiabilities {other than trade payables) over-the ext:six months. The Company-also monitors the level.of
expected cash inflows on'trade receivables together with expected cash olitflows on tradeipayablesand other financial abilities; This excludes
hepotential impact of extreme circumstances that-cannot reasonably be predicted; such-as natural disasters,

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial fiabilities at the reporting date. The amounts.are gross and undiscounted,
and exclude the impact of netting agreements:

Financing-arrangements

As at March 31, 2022 Cartying Less than1 Year More than Total
Amount 1vyear
Borrowings 16,50,80,710 16,50,80,710 E 16,50,80,710
Trade payables 1,95,59,739 1,95,59,739 1,95,59;739
Other financial liabilities 8,472,504 ' 8,42,504 8,42,504
Yotal 118,54,82,953 18,54,82,953 18,54,82,953
As at March 31, 2021 Carrying Less than 1 Year Mare than Total
Amount e e 1year .
Borrowings 7,72,47,882 7.:72,47,882 7,72,47,882
‘Trade payables 10,28,788 10,28,788 10,28,788
Other financial liabilities 11,48,251 11,4!}_,_2_&_ 11,48,251
Total 7,94,24,921 7,94,24,921 7,94,28,921
AsatApril 1, 2020 Carrying Less than 1 Year ‘More than Total
Amount . . 3 years )
:Borrowings 2,71,97,882 2,71,97,882 2,71,97,882
Tradepayahies 95,87,069 95,87,069 95,87,069:
‘Other financial liabilities 11,38;438 11,38,438 11,38,438
Total 3,79,23,389 3,79;23,389 3,79,23,389

The:.Company-has no sanctioned financihg arrangenent as:at Match 31,2022,

---------- Space has beenleft blank intentionallyseree.
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Note No.- 40 Ratios:as per Schedule lli requirements

a) Current ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

particulars As at As-at As at
31.03.2022 31,03.2021 01.04.2020
Current assets 11,07,98,622 42,28,564 67,11,662
Current liabilities 18,62,09,614 8,07,79,942 3,81,72,649
Ratio 0.60 0.05 0,18
1036.69% -70.23% ‘

%age change frony previous year

Reason for change more than 25%:

During the year ended March 31, 2022, current ratio has been improved from 0,05 to 0.60 due to: substantial increase in both numerator and
denominator on account of increase in shart term borrowings {loans repayble on demand) with corresponding increase in advance to suppliers and fixed

deposits with bank.

During the yearended March 31, 2021, current ratio has been detorlated from.0.18 to 0.05 due to substantual increase in denominator on account of

increase in shortterm borrowings {loans repayble-on demand) with reduction in numerator,

b) Debt equity ratio:= Total Debt divided by Total equity

Pa rticulai;s Asat As at As at
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 01.04.2020.

Total debt {including lease liabilities) 16,50,80,710 7,72,47,882 2,71,97,882

Total equity 1,03,34,456 49,16,707 46,46,795

Ratio 1597 15,71 5.85.

%age changefrom previous yeat 1.67% 168.43%

Reason for change more than 25%:

During the year-ended March:31, 2021, debt equity ratio has been detoriated from 5.85 to-15.71 due to'substantial increase’in numerator on account of
increase in short term borrowings (Icans:repayble on dermand) with:no stibstantial change in denominator;

. ¢) Debt sérvice coverage ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided by Total interest and principal payments

— For the yearended For the year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Profit/ {Loss) after tax 54,32,683 2,69,274
Add : Non cash-operating expenses and-finance cost
~Depreciation and amartisation 46,06,721 44,24,174
- Finance cost 7,69,59! -
Farnings available for debt services 1,08,09;003 46,93,448
Interest-cost Grborrowings: 7,69,599 -
Yotalinterest and principal repayments 7,69,599 &
Ratio 14.04 NA
Y%age changefrom previous year NA
Reason for changé morethan 25%: NA
d}Return on quufty Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Equity
As at/For the year AsatfFor theyear
Particulars ended ended
31:03,2022. $1.03.2021
Profitafter tax 54,832,683 2,69,274
Total equity 1,03,34,456 49,116,707
Ratic 0:53: 0.05
859.:86%

%agechange from previous year

Reason for change more than 25%:

Diiing the yeéarended March 31, 2022, return.on equity ratio has been improved-from 0.05'to 0.53 due o profit.from trading in goods during the year

which results in increase in profitattertax.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts in INR, except per share data or as otherwise stated

e) Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of material consumed divided by closing inventory

i For the year ended For the year ended
particulars 31.,03.2022 31.03.2021
Cost of material consumed 9,95,07,889 .
Closing Inventory 87,20,460 R
Ratio 11.41 NA
%age.change from previous year NA
Reason for change more than 25%: NA
f) Trade Recelvables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by Closing trade receivables

a o . As at As at

icul .
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Credit Sales 14,64,77,748 2,03,03,984
Closing Trade Receivables 75,15,614 28,13,303
Ratio 19.49 T1.22

170.05%

Yeage change from previous year
‘Reason for change more than 25%:
Thie ratio hasibeen increased from 7.22 as at March:31, 2021 10:19.49 as.at March 31, 2022 mainly due to better collection management and Jow credit

petiod on sale of goods.

g£) Trade payablésturnover ratio = Total purchases of goods and services divided by closing trade:payables

Particulars . Asat Asat

- . ) '31.03,2022 31,03,2021
Credit Purchases ‘ ' ' 10,82,28,349 -
Othier Expenses 1,83,71,832 60,92,365
Total purchases of goods and services 12,66,00;181 092,365
Closing Trade Payables 1,95,59,739 10,28,788
Ratio ‘ 6.47 5.92
%age change fromprevious year 9,30%

Reason for change more than 25%: NA

h) Net working capital Turnover Ratio =Sales-divided by Net-Working capital wheré net'working capltal = current assets - current liabilities

Particulars Asat Asat

B B 31,03.2022 31.03,2021,
Revenuie from operations® o i " 14,68,77,748 T 2,03,03,984
Net-working capital -7;54,10,993 -7,65;51,378
Ratio: -1.94 0.27
Y%age change from previous year 632.33%

Reason for.change more thin 25%:
The ratiowhas been reduced from {0.27) as-at March 31, 2021 10(1:94) as at March:31, 2022 mainfy duie 16 increae in revenue due to sale of goods during
the year ended 31 March, 2022,

1) Net profitratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales

Particulars Asat As st 5

T ) 31.03,2022 31.03:2021
Profitaftertax '  54,32,683 2,69,274
Revenue froim operations® 14,64,77,748 2,03,03;984
Ratlo 0.04 0,01
Yeage changefram previous year : 179.66%

Reason-forchange more than25%:
Theratiohas beenjncreased from 0,01 as at:March 31, 202140 0:04 as at March 31, 2022 mainly dueto.better gross-roarginon saleiof goods as compare
tosale of services and sale of goods increased: during the year ended March 31, 2022, .
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j) Return on Capital employed = Earnings before interest and taxes {EBIT} divided by Capital Employed

Particulars Asat As at
o 31.03.2022 33.03.2021
Profit-after tax {A) 54,32,683 T 2,69,274
Finance costs{B} 7,69,599 R
Other income (C) 13,89,766 -
EBIT (D) = (AJ{(B)-(C) 48,12,516 2,69,274
Total Equity{E) 1,03,34,456 48,16,707
Borrowings {including lease liabilities) (F) 16,50,80,710 7,72,47,882
Intangible assets{G) 5,42,11,675 4,80,85,251
Capital Employed (H}=(E}H{F)-{G} 12,12,03,491 3,40,79,338
Ratio {D}/(H) 0.04 0.01
‘ 402.52%

%age change from previous year

Reason fot change more than 25%:

The ratio has been increased from 0.01 as at March 31, 2021 to 0.04:3s at March 31, 2022 due to increase in profit mainly dueto better gross margin on

sale of goods as compare to sale of sefvices and sale of goods increased during the year ended March 31, 2022,
{k) Return on Investment = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by total fixed assets
The Company hasnotinvestment-accordiingly the ratio is not applicable.

Note No.-41 Other Statutory Information

{i) The Company does not have-ary: Benami property,
property. .

{ii) The Company did not have iy transactions with Companies struck off.
{iii) The Company:does not have any chatges-or satisfaction whichis yetto be

{v) The Company has not advanced of loaned or invested funds to any other p
anderstanding that the intermediary shatl

{a) directly or indirectly lend or-invest in other persons. or entities identified in any
Beneficiaries) of

{b} provide any guarantee, security or the like:to oron behalf of the Ultireate Beneficlaries

{vi} The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or-entity(ies}, including foreign eritities (Funding Part
recorded in writing or otherwise) fhat.the Company:shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified o any mann
Beneficiaries) or :

(b} provide any guarantee; security or thelike on behalf of the Ultinate Beneficiaries,

{vii) The Company does niot have any transaction which isnot recorded in
the year Inthetax-assessménts undei: the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, searc

{vili) The:Compaiiy has hot been declared wilful defaulter by any bank'or financial Institution or otherfénder.
{iX) The Company-doesnot-have aily Seherfie of Arrangements which have
the Act.

{x) The Company has complied wit
number of Layers) Rales, 2017.

1) The Company:does not have-any working capital foanan
sanctionetterto the banks for working capital loan;

{«li) The Company.has rio identified Promoters ds-per the applicable provisions of Companies. Act 2013,

---------- Space has been left blank intentionally-——»---

where any proceeding’has beeninitiated'or pending against the Commpany for holding any Benami

registeredwith Registrar of Companies beyond the:statutory period.
{iv) The Company has not traded.or invested in:Crypto currency of Virtual Currency during the respective financlal years / period,
ersonis) or entity(ies), including foreign entities: {Intermediaries) with the

‘manner whatsoever by or-on behalf of the Company (Ultimate

v} with the understanding (whether

er whatsoever by or ot behalf of the: Funding Party (Ultimate

the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed asincome during
hor sutvey of any other relévant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

been approved by the Competent Autbority in'termsiof sections:23010:237 of
h-the:the number of layers prescribed tinder of Section 2{87) of the Act read with, the Companies. {Restriction on

d it Is not filing any staterient.of inventories-and trade recelvablesias per covenants stated in
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Note No.-42 Disclosure under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

a. Disaggregated revenue information

particul For the year ended For the:year ended
articulars 31,03,2022 31.03.2021
Type of services or goods
Revenue from Customers 14,64,71,748 2,03,03,984
Other Operating Revenue 13,89,766 .
Total 14,78,67,514 2,03,03,984
Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from customers based in India 14,78,67,514 2,03,03,984
Revenuie from customers based outside India - M
Total 14,78,67,514 2,03;03,984
Timing of reventie recognltion
Goods and services transferred over time 1,25,54,832 1,82,03,223
Goods and services transferred at.a point in time 13,53,12,682 21,00,761
Total 14,78,67,514 2,03,03,984
b. Trade receivablesand Contract Custormers
particul ) Asat As at
articutars 31.03.2022 31.03,2021

Trade receivables {Refer Note-No.11) 75,15,614 28,13,303
Contract Assets - -
Contract Liabilities -
Trade tecelvables are'non-interest bearing and are generallyon terms of 30 10 90 days.
Tradeveceivables and unbilled révenue are presented net of impairment in the Balance sheet.
The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for déliverables as either a receivable oras unbilled revenue,
A receivablesiis right to consideration that is unconditional tpoh passage of time.
Revenuefor ongoingservicesat the reparting date yet'to be invoiced Is recorded as unbilled revenue:
c.5et outbelow is the-amount of fevenue récognised from;

- ’ ) Forthe yearended Forthe year ended
Particulars 31.03:2022 31.03:2021

Athounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
Amount received against-contract-fiability during theiyear
Performance obligations satisfied during the year

Amounts included in contractliabilities at the-end of theyear
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Note No.-43 Explanation of transition to Ind-AS

a, Explanation of transition to Ind AS
As statedin Note 2, these are the. Commmpany's first financial statements prepared in:accordance with ind AS, For the year ended 31 March 2021, the

Company had prépared its financial statements in accordance with Companies{Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act
and other relevant provisions of the Act (‘previous GAAPR').

The 1hd. AS accounting policies set out in Note 4 have been applied in preparing these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 including
the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the opening ind AS Balance Shegtion the date of transition .e. 1 April 2020,

In preparing its Ind AS Balance Sheéet as at 1April 2020 and in presenting the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
has ‘adjusted amounts reported. previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAP, This note explains the ‘principal
adjustments made by the Company. in restating its financial statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAP, and how the transition from
previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s finaicial posmon, financial performance and cash flows:

Exeriptions avalled and exceptions applied on first time adoption of Ind-AS 101

In préparing these financial statements, the Company has applied the below méntioned optional exemptions.and mandatory exceptions:

i, Optlonal exemptions availed

a) Cafrylng.amount of Property, plant and equipimient and Intangibles assets
As.pérritted by Ind AS 101, the Company has elected to continue with- the carriing valies under previous GAAP as deemied:cost for all the items of

property, plant and equipment-and Intangible assets,

ji. Mandatory exceptions

a) Estimates

As per Ind-AS 101, anentity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS‘at the date of transition toind AS«at the-end of the comparative period presented in
the enlity s first. Ind AS financial statements,as the case may be, should be consistent: with estitnates made for the same date in accordance with the
previous GAAP unless there is objective evidence that those -estimates ‘were in error:However, the estimates should be adjusted to reflect any
différences in accounting policies:

As per hd AS 101, where application of Inid AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were not required under previous GAAP, those
estimates should he made to réflect conditions that existed at the date of transition:{for preparing opening ind AS balance sheet) or at the end of the
comparative period {for presenting comparative informationas per ind AS);

Thie Company’s estimates.under Ind AS are consistent with the above requirement; Key estimates considered in preparation of the financial statements
that were hotrequired under the previous GAAPR are listed below:

~fair valuation of financial Instruments carried at FVTPLand/ or FVOCH

= Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model.

< Determination of the discounted value for finanicial instruments carried at amortised cost.

b) Classification and rmeasurement of financial:assets

ind AS 101 reguires an -entity to-assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances: existing as on the date. of transition,
Further, the staridard pérmits measurement of financial assets accounted ot amortised cost based on-facts and circumstances. existing at'the date of
“transition if retrospective application'is impracticable,

Accordingly, the Conipany has determined the: classification of financial assets based on facts and drcumstances. that exist on the date of transition.
Maasurement of the financial assets accotinted at amortised:cost has been done retrospectively exceptwhere the same-is impracticable.
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Note No.-44 First time adoption of ind AS - Contd..

b. Reconciliation of equity as onApril 1, 2020

. Amaunt as pey Adjustments on Amount as per
Particulars Previous GAAPH transition to Ind AS ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant & equipment 7,11,834 . 7,11,834
b) Intangible assets 3,24,77,948 33,49,623 3,58,27,571
¢) Income taxassets {net} 17,05,529 - 17,05,529
Total non-current assets 3,48,95,311 133,49,623 3,82,44,934
Current assets
a) Inventories - - .

b} Financial assets

i} Tradereceivables 57,138,929 - 57,13,929

ii) Cash & cash equivaleiits 4,46,946 4,46,946

iii}- Other financial assets 5,000 5,000
¢} Otherassets 5,45,787 - 545,787
Total Current Assets 67,11,662 - 67,11;662
TOTAL ASSETS 4,16,06,973 33,49,623 4,49,56,596
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a} Equitysharecapital 4,00,000. - 4,00,000
b) Otherequity 25,28,678 17,18,117 42,46,795
Total equity 29,28,618 17,18,117 46,46,795
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Provisions “ 9,94,966 9,94,966
b} Deferred tax liabllities {net) 5,64,338 5,77,848 11,42,186
Totalnon-current ffabllities. 564,338 ) 15,72,814 21,37,152
Cutrent liabitities
a) Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings 2,71,97,882 - 2,71,97,882

i} Trade payables .

- Total outstanding dues of micro-enterprises and small enterprises - - -
T otfal outstﬁqdung dues of creditors-other than'micro enterprisesand 95,87,069 R 95,87.060
srmall enterprises

ii) Other financial fiabilities 11,38,438 - 11,38,438
b} :Other currentliabilities 1,90,568 - 1,90,568
¢} Provisions: _ - ) 58,692 58,692
Total cuirent flabliities 3,81,13,957 58,692 3,81,72,649.
Total liabilities 3,86,78,295 16,31,506 4,03,09,801
TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES. 4,16,06,973 33,49,623 4,49,56,596:

# The previous GAAP figures hiave been reclassified 1o.confaim 1o Ind AS presentation requirements for. the purpose of:thisnote,
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Note No.-44 First time adoption of nd AS - Contd..

b. Reconciliation of equity as on April 1, 2020

Amgount as per

Adjustments on

Amountas per

Particulars Previous GAAPH transition to Ind AS tnd AS
ASSETS
Non-current-assets
a) Property, plant & equipment .8,73,090 - 8,73,090
¢} Intangibleassets 4,02,04,390 (82,41,435) 3,19,62,955%
e} Intangible assets under development 3,23,35,600 (1,62,13,304) 1,61,22,296
i) Income tax assets {net) 28,63,478 - 28,63,478
j) Otherassets - 3,23,35,600 3,23,35,600
Total non-current assets 7,62,76,558 78,80,861 8,41,57,419
Cutrent assets -
a) loventories - - .
b} Financialassets
1} Tradereceivables 28,13,303 28,13,303
ii} Cashi &-cash equivalents 7,82,146 - 7,82,446
iv) Other finiancial assets 63,000 - 163,000
¢} Otherassets 5,70,115 - 5,70,115.
Total Current Assets 42,28,564 - 42,28,563
TOTALASSETS ~ 8,05,05,122 78,80,861 8,83,85,982
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a) Equityshare capital 4,00,000 - :4,00,000
b} Otherequity (14,53,755) 59,70,462. 45,16,707
Total equity {10,53,755) 59,70,462 49,16,707
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
¢} Provisions ~« 14,56,399 14,56,399
d} Deferred tax fiabilities (net) 829,670 4,03,265 12,32,935
Totat noh-cutrent liabilities 8,29,670 18,59,664 26,89,334
Current fiabllitles
a) Finandialliabilities
i¥Borrowings 7,72,47,882 - 7,72,47,882
iy Tradé payables.
- Total-outstanding dues.of micro enterprises and small-enterprises = - -
-~Totak qutstandmg-dues of creditors other than micro enterprisesand 10,28,788 N 10,268,788
small enterprises:
v} Other finaticial liabilities 11;48,251 5 11,48;251
b} Othercdrrentliabilities 13,04,286 - 13,04,286
¢) Provisions : & 50,735 50,735
Totalcorrent liabilities 8,07,29,207 50,735 8,07,79,942
Total Habllities 8,15,58,877 19,10,399° 8,34,69,276
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,05,05,122 . 78,80,861 __8,83,85,983

# Theprevious GAAP figures have'been reéclassified to'conformto Ind AS présentation requirenients for the purpose of this note.
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Note No.-44 First time adoption of ind AS - Contd..

d. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2021

particulars Amountas per

Adjustmentson

Amount as per

Previous GAAPH transition todnd AS ind AS

income
1. Revenue from operations 2,03,03,984 - 2,03,03,984
11, Other income - - -
11l. Total income 2,03,03,984 - 2,03,03,984
1V, Expenses

Employee benefit expense 89,73,308 4,54,328 94,27,636

Finance costs " ks -

Depreciation and amortisation expense 89,55,412 {45;31,238) 44,248,174

Other expenses’ 60,92,365 - 60,92,365

Total expenses 2,40,21,085 {40,76,910) 1,99,44,175
V. Profit / {Loss) before tax (Il - IV) {37,17,101) 40,76,910 3,59,809
V. Tax expenses

Current tax - -

Tax for earlieryears . - -

Deferred tax expense / {credit) ) 2,65,332 1,74,797) 90,535

Total tax expense - 2;65,332 1,74,797) 90,535
Vit Profit / (Loss) for'the period/year (V.- VI} {39,82,433}) 42,51,707 2,69;274
Viil. Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be're-classified subsequently toprofit or loss
Re-measurements of the definéd benefit liability - 852 852
Income tax relating to items that will hot be reclassified to profitand los - {214) (214)
Other comprehensive ncome/ (loss)for the period/year - 638 638

1X, Total Comprehensive incoime.for the period/year {Vil + Vi) . (39,82,433) 42,52;345 2,69,912

# The previotis GAAP figutes have been feclassified to conform to Ind AS presgntation requirements for thespurpose of this note,
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Note No.-44 First time adoption of Ind AS - Contd..

e. Reconciliation of total equity

Total Comprehénsive Income:as per Ind AS
k} Notes toirst timeadoption.of Ind AS:

Note-1 Amortization méthod of intangible Assets

Particulars Notesto Asat As at
fist time March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
adoption
Total equity {shareholder's funds) as per previous GAAP {10,53,755) 29,28,678
Impact of adjustment of prior period error
- Amortization method of imtangible assets 1 78,69,458 33,49,623
- Provision for gratuity 2 (15,07,134) (10,53,658)
~Intangible assets under-development 4 11,403
impact of Deferred tax.on above adjustments 6 {4,03,263) - {5,77,848)
Tota} Adjustments 59,70,462 17,18,117
Total equity asper IndAS 49,16,707 46,46,795
1) Recongiliation of total comprehensive income
Particulars Notes to fist time Yearended
adoption © March31,2021
A. Profit after tax as per Previous GAAP {39,82,433)
Adjustmentsy
A.Employee henefit expense
Impactiof recognition of te-measuretvent of employee benefits in OCI 5 852
impact of-adjustmentiof prior period error
- Provision for gratuity 2 4,53,476
4,54,328
B. Depreciation and anortization
Impact.of adjustment of prior period error
- Aiviortization method of intangible assets 1 {45,19,835)
-intangible assets Under development 4 {11,403}
{45,31,238)
E. Tax Expénses o
Tax impact.on ahove adjustments 6 ; (1,74,797)
{1,74,797)
E. Total Adjustments; (42;51,707)
£. Profit aftertaxas pet lid AS 2,69,274
G. Dther Comprehensive income
Re-measyrementof eniployee benefits 5 852
Taxifpatt'on above adjustments, 6 {214)
638
2,69,912.

Unider previous GAAP, intatigible assets were-amortized using written down value metho,,d, Urider Ind AS, the amortisation method used:shall reflect the
pattern in w’ﬁic,h‘t»he,v‘a,,s_set?s;future economic bienefits ate expected to. be consurned by the Company and in case that pattern canoot be determined
reliably; the straight-line:cthiod shall be used, accordinlgy Company has changed the amortization niethod 1o straight line. The'related impact on:Other

equity; Balance sheet andStatement of profit.and loss is given below:
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Impact of Ind AS adjustments:

Balance Sheet
As at As at

Particulars March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Intangible Assets 78,69,458 33,49.623
Other equity - Retained Earnings 78,659,458 33,49,623
Statement of Profit and Loss

. As at
Particulars Marech 31, 2021

{45,19,835)

Depréeciationand amortization expense

Note-2 Provision for Gratuity

As-per previous GAAP as well as Ind AS; long term employee benefits and retirement. benefits are required to be valued using projected unit credit method
10 determine the present value:of its defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and; where applicable, past service cost. Therefore,
provision for employee henefits of gratuity should have been recognised using actusrial vatuation. The related impact on Other equity, Balance sheet and

Statement of profit-and loss'is given below:

tmpactof Tnd AS adjustments:

Balance:Sheet
Particulars Asat As at

articular: March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Long Term Provisions 14,56,399. 9,94,966
Shott Term Provisions 50,735 8,692
Other-equity - Retained Earnings (15,07,134) {10,53,658)

Statement.of Profitand Loss
bhbchLoc As at

Particulars March 31, 2021
Salary.and Wages 4,53,476

Note-3 Captial Advance

Under previous GAAP, initial payment madetovendor under Technology Tranfer Agreement was réported as intangible assets.under - development while
uhdér Ind AS;it hasbeen reported as-advance for capital goods as the Company has not teceived any technology till the year endeéd March 31, 2022, The
related-impadt on Other equity, Balance shet and Statement of profit and foss is given below:

Impactof Ind’AS adjustments;

Balanice Sheet
e Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2021 March31, 2020
Intangible Asséts under Developiient {3,23;35,600. -
3,23,35,600 -7

Otherreceivables

ES

Otherequity - Retalned Earnings

Note-4 Intanglble assets under development
During the year ended March 31, 2021,» fevenue expenditure capitalized on software tndét-development was recognised as intangible assets instead of
intangible assets under development. Accordingly, ithas been adjusted, The related impact on Other equity; Balance shéet and Statement of profitand loss
is:given below:

finpactof Ind AS adjustments;

Balance Sheet

Particulars As ati‘f Asat
. e March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Intangible Assets S (1,61,10,893) -

Intangible Assets under development 1,61,22,296 -

Other equity - Refained Earnings {11,403) .

Statement of Profit-and Loss N

Partteul - ‘ v As at

| art’cvu; a;‘rfs o March 31,2021 |

Depreciationand amortization expense S {11,403)
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Note-5 Remeasurement of net defined benefit liabifity

Under previous GAAP, actuarial gain/ losses arising on remeasurement of net defined benefit liability were recognised as part of gratuity expenses under
the head employeg benefit expenses, however, under Ind AS, the. actuarial :;gain/ losses arising on refmeasurement of net defined benefit liability are
required to be recognised under other comprehensive income instead of statement of profit and foss. Further, such actuatial gain/ losses will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit and loss. There is no impact of such adjustmentin Other eduity and Balance sheet. The related impact on Statement of

profit and loss is given below:

impact of Ind AS adjustments:
Statement of Profitand Loss

Particulars . As at

March 31,2021,
Employee benefit expenses 852
Other comprehensive income {852)

Note-6 Deferred tax on above adjustments
Deferred tax has been recognised on above adjustments. The related impacton Other equity, Balanice sheet and Statement of profit and loss is.given

tmpact of ind AS adjustments:
Balance Sheet

|
&

Particul Asat Asat

artledlars , ) . March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deferred tax assets / liability ' {4,03,265) (5,77,848)
Other equity - Retained Earnings 4,03,265 5,77,848
Statement of Profit and Loss

; Asat

Particulars _ March 31, 2021
Deferred tax expense - Staterient.of profit and Joss (1,74,797),
Deferred tax expense -~ Other.comprehensive income 214

Note No.-45 Directly 'Att’ributable Expenses Capltalized / Included In Intangible Assets under Developmerit

Forthe year ended For the year ended

Particulars , ‘March 31,2022 March31,2021
Salary and wages N o 99,98,177 1,29,42,506
Repairs and maintenance - Machingry/Others - 1,21,991
Consurnable - 3,68,866
Job Work » - 13,80,346
Telephone Expenses - 4,52,396
Rent - 5,83;200
Server Charges - 2,35,620
Subscription fees - 14,726
Travelling expenses - 22,643
99,98,177 1,61,22,295.

Note No.-46 Impact of COVID-19

The outbreakof the Covid-19'Since 23 March 2020 pandemic and the consequentlock down has impacted the regular business operations of the Company
especially during the year ended 31 March;2021, Based oh managetrient's assessment, the. Company believes no additiona) adjustments is required as at
31 March 2022 to the:carrylng valtie of trade receivables, inventories, property, plant & equipment, deferred tax asset-and other financial assets. Further,
the Company has also: assessed its liquidity position and based onthe: cash flows available on balance sheet,. the: Company will be able to.meetiall its
obligations. The Impact:of the pan demiic may be different from that sdscassedas atthe date of approval of these finandial statements and the Company will
continte 1o monitor any material changesto future economic conditions..

ForAndd On Behalf Of Borad Of Directors
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CA. Matvbausti— S Vikas Chadtia Sundeep Kumar Dhawan
Partner 2 {Director) {Director)
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